
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 6, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 6, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Steve Zarrilli – Woodside Bible 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 
Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Postponed Items 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 



 
 

 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 2 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency 
Medical Services .................................................................................................. 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Patrol Rifles and 
Accessories .......................................................................................................... 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Bare Root Street 
Trees .................................................................................................................... 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Community Coalition .................................................................................... 4 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-5 – 14 
Mile Road Meter Chamber Rehabilitation............................................................. 4 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Belal and 
Shahida Hossain Ghazi – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-377-038 4 

E-6 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCWA 4 

E-7 Service Agreement for Use of Vehicle – City of Clawson 5 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; and 
Municipal Building Authority c) City Council Appointments Students: Planning 
Commission 5 

F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 18, 2007 7 

F-3 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowing 7 

F-4 Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance Subdivision Entranceway Signs 8 



 
 

 

F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to The Troy City 
Charter Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 8 

F-6 Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance 9 

F-7 Bid Waiver – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services 10 

F-8 Kroger SDM License Applications 10 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address)  - Request for 
Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – August 20, 2007........................ 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 13 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – March 21, 2007.......................................................... 13 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – April 18, 2007 ............................................................ 13 
c) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 15, 2007 ........................................... 13 
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – June 26, 2007 ........................................ 13 
e) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – July 10, 2007.................................... 13 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 10, 2007 ................................ 13 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 10, 2007 ................................ 13 
h) Planning Commission/Final – July 10, 2007....................................................... 13 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 11, 2007....................................... 13 
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 11, 2007....................................... 13 
k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 17, 2007 .................................................. 13 



 
 

 

l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2007............................................... 13 
m) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 31, 2007............................................. 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 27  Annual Actuarial 
Valuation Report – December 31, 2006

th

............................................................. 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Lynn Cooper Regarding the Senior Home 
Assistance Repair Program (SHARP) ................................................................ 13 

b) Letter of Thanks to City Manager Phil Nelson from J. Michael Ermiger.............. 13 
c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Scott Horne Commending the 

Efforts of Officer McWilliams .............................................................................. 13 
d) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from John Reynolds, Delphi Corporate 

Security in Appreciation of the Presentation by Sgt. Kowalski............................ 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Standard & Poor’s Rating of Troy 14 

J-7  Rehman Robson’s Engagement Letter for the City of Troy – Year Ended June 30, 
2007 14 

J-8  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding the Limited Brands Law 
Enforcement Loss Prevention Grant 14 

J-9  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Concerns about 
Pedestrians at Rochester and Big Beaver 14 

J-10  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Schroeder Park 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 14 



 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 14 

ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

Monday, August 20, 2007 ........................................................................................ 15 
1. Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address)  - Request for 

Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats...................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 15 
Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................ 15 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Steve Zarrilli – Woodside Bible 
Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 
Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to permitting restaurants subject to 
Special Use Approval in the M-1 District, to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (ZOTA 231), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 23, 2007 
and the 7:30 PM Special Joint City Council Meeting of August 1, 2007 be APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency Medical 

Services                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
WHEREAS, On June 2, 2003, a three-year contract to provide emergency medical services 
with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods was awarded to the low bidder 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

submitting the best value proposal, Alliance Mobile Health for an estimated cost of $463,623.00 
per year at unit prices contained in the tabulation opened January 31, 2003 {Resolution #2003-
06-281};  
 
WHEREAS, The first of three one-year options was exercised and approved by Troy City 
Council on September 18, 2006, under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the 
original contract {Resolution #2006-09-369}; and   
 
WHEREAS, Alliance Mobile Health has agreed to exercise the second option to renew for one 
year under the same terms and conditions with a rate increase of 3%; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for one additional year with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to provide 
Emergency Medical Services for an estimated total cost of $500,000.00 per year under the 
same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the original contract to expire September 30, 
2008, which allows for a 3% rate increase, in accordance with the Consumer Price Index 
Inflation Calculator.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Patrol Rifles and 

Accessories                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase fifty (50) Smith & 
Wesson M&P 15 Patrol Rifles to the low bidder, Michigan Police Equipment Company of 
Charlotte, MI, for an estimated total cost of $43,650.00, at unit prices as contained on the bid 
tabulation opened June 20, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS Proposals A and B for 
accessories due to budgetary limitations. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Bare Root Street Trees                 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide and install 2500 
bare root residential ROW trees and furnish 200 bare root trees for the golf courses without 
installation to the low bidder, Marine City Nursery of Marine City, MI, at  $72.00 and $52.00 per 
tree respectively, in accordance with the bid tabulation opened May 22, 2007, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 
Community Coalition                     

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2007/2008 fiscal year to the Troy Community Coalition to provide community services to 
prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the amount of $100,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-5 – 14 Mile 

Road Meter Chamber Rehabilitation                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-5, 14 Mile Road Meter 
Chamber Rehabilitation, to Trojan Development Company, Inc., 2260 Metamora Road, Oxford, 
MI 48371, at an estimated total cost of $87,200.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Belal and 

Shahida Hossain Ghazi – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-377-038  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sidewalk 
from property owners Belal Hossain Ghazi and Shahida Hossain Ghazi, having Sidwell #88-20-
23-377-038; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCWA  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to SOCWA, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Service Agreement for Use of Vehicle – City of Clawson  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide use of vehicle to the City of Clawson, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
and Municipal Building Authority c) City Council Appointments Students: Planning 
Commission     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(c) City Council Appointments – Students 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REAPPOINTS the following student to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Council  - 1 Year Term 
 
Jonathan Shin Term Expires 07/01/08 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 18, 2007 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(a) No Changes on Tucker at Standish
 
RESOLVED, That there be no changes on Tucker at Standish. 
 
(b) Installation of Signs – Stop Signs on Vermont at Lydia
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
signs on Vermont at Lydia. 
 
(c) Installation of Sign – Stop Sign on Colleen at Denise
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
sign on Colleen at Denise. 
 
(d) No Changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent Curve
 
RESOLVED, That there be no changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent curve. 
 
(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1755 E. Wattles    
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 1755 E. Wattles as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowing 
 
Suggested Resolution  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On May 14, 2007, a contract to furnish three-year requirements of Streets 
Department rough weed mowing services with an option to renew for two additional years was 
awarded to the low bidder, Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc. of Troy, MI, (Resolution # 
2007-05-142-E-4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc. has defaulted on the contract due to poor 
performance issues resulting from the lack of communication and timeliness of mowing activity;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment and transportation for the Streets Department 
rough weed mowing services from Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc., and hereby RE-
AWARDS to the next lowest bidder, Bob’s Landscaping Service, Inc. of St Clair Shores, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 23, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring December 31, 
2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance Subdivision Entranceway Signs 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVISES Section 85.02.05 C of the Troy Sign 
Ordinance, Chapter 85 of the Troy City Code, regarding the provisions for subdivision entrance 
signs in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to The Troy City 

Charter Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following proposed 
Charter Amendment for the November 6, 2007 City General Election: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, 
be amended to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the 
next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without 
resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in 
its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not 
expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective 
office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position 
at least 21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance 
 
(a) Approval of Enactment of Chapter 77 – Smoking Lounges
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ENACTS Chapter 77, 
Smoking Lounges, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And 
 
(b) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Service 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

And   
 
(c) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required   
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 60.03 of Chapter 60, Fees 
and Bonds Required, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Bid Waiver – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Graphic Sciences was been the provider of optical scanning services under the 
State of Michigan MiDEAL Program for many years; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan contract has expired, yet Graphic Sciences has continued to 
provide services to the state and local governments under the same pricing, terms, and 
conditions as the original contract;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract with 
Graphic Sciences to provide digital conversion and microfilm services as dictated by the original 
agreement with the State of Michigan until a new contract is awarded by the State; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That costs for services rendered over the administrative limit in 
the amount of $20,000.00 are hereby CONFIRMED.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Kroger SDM License Applications 
 
(1)  Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N. Coolidge  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

 
(a) New License
 
RESOLVED, That the request from The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 
SDM licensed business located at 1237 N. Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from 
Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421565} be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for liquor 
licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail 
to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 1237 N. Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And 
 
(2)  Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 3125 John R  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(a) New License
 
RESOLVED, That the request from The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 
SDM licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County from 
Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421588} be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
 (b) Agreement
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for liquor 
licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail 
to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 3125 John R, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And 

  
(3) Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W. South  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(a) New License
 
RESOLVED, That the request from The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 
SDM licensed business located at 2105 W. South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County from 
Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421608} be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for liquor 
licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail 
to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 2105 W. South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address)  - Request for Outdoor 

Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – August 20, 2007       
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Traffic Committee/Final – March 21, 2007 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – April 18, 2007  
c) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 15, 2007 
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – June 26, 2007  
e) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – July 10, 2007 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 10, 2007  
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 10, 2007 
h) Planning Commission/Final – July 10, 2007  
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 11, 2007  
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 11, 2007  
k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 17, 2007 
l) 

) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 31, 2007 
Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2007  

m
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 27th Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Report – December 31, 2006 
 
J-3 Letters of Appreciation:    
a) Letter of Appreciation from Lynn Cooper Regarding the Senior Home Assistance Repair 

Program (SHARP)  
b) Letter of Thanks to City Manager Phil Nelson from J. Michael Ermiger  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Scott Horne Commending the Efforts of Officer 

McWilliams  
d) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from John Reynolds, Delphi Corporate Security in 

Appreciation of the Presentation by Sgt. Kowalski     
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Standard & Poor’s Rating of Troy 
 
J-7  Rehman Robson’s Engagement Letter for the City of Troy – Year Ended June 30, 

2007 
 
J-8  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding the Limited Brands Law 

Enforcement Loss Prevention Grant 
 
J-9  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Concerns about 

Pedestrians at Rochester and Big Beaver 
 
J-10  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Schroeder Park 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 6, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, August 20, 2007 
1. Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address)  - Request for Outdoor 

Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats 
 

 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

 
Monday, August 20, 2007 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 1, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 15, 2007........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
A-1 No Presentations  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  
B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 1

 
 
 
DATE: July 24, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – 

Article XXVIII – Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the June 12, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 231.   
 
• The proposed amendment permits Restaurants with Special Use Approval in the M-1 

District.  Outdoor seating will be permitted provided there is access to the outdoor seating 
area through the interior of the restaurant.  The amendment will improve usability and 
marketability of M-1 property. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 231 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from June 12, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from May 22, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
4. Minutes from April 24, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
5. Minutes from March 27, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 231 Restaurants in M-1\CC Public Hearing 08 06 07.doc 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
restaurants subject to Special Use Approval in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, 
to read as follows: 
 
28.30.11 Restaurants, including outdoor seating, subject to the following: 

 
  A. Outside seating areas shall be enclosed by masonry walls, or 

decorative fencing elements, or shall otherwise be physically 
delineated and limited in a manner acceptable to the Planning 
Commission.   

  B. Access to the outdoor seating area shall be from the interior of the 
restaurant. 

  C. Drive through windows shall be prohibited. 
 
28.30.120 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
   
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 



 2

prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 231 Restaurants in M-1\Restaurants in M-1 Draft ZOTA 06 21 07.doc 











       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
D-1 No Postponed Items  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 23, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Pastor Randy Vinson of Glen Oaks Alliance Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  
 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Broomfield   
 
Resolution #2007-07-218 
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by  Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Broomfield at the Regular City Council and Closed Session meetings of July 23, 2007 due to 
being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for LMS North America – 
5755 New King 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner. There was 
no public comment. 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

Resolution #2007-07-219 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for LMS North America for property known as 5755 New King, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel # 
88-20-08-227-004 in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Approval to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to LMS 

North America – 5755 New King  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the petitioner or the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2007-07-220 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on July 23, 2007, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 5755 New King, 
Troy, MI. 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-227-004; 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by LMS North America for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 5755 New King, Troy, MI. 
48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the Troy City Council, on, July 23, 
2007, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS 
North America at 5755 New King, Troy, MI. 48098 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing 
unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS North America, at 5755 New 
King, Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the 
other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS North America at 5755 New King, 
Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term of twelve (12) 
years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy 
and LMS North America, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and LMS North America, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini   
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Re-programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 

2004 Unexpended Funds  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2007-07-221 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on this 
date, July 23, 2007 has determined that program year 2004 unexpended funds of $81,233.95 
should be re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for Charnwood 
Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, The balance of Program Year 2004 Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, unexpended funds in the amount of  
$29,673.71 should be re-programmed to the Section 36 Park Improvement Project;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 
Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and the Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project to the list of CDBG projects for 2004.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-07-222 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 9, 2007 be 
APPROVED as amended. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 – Membership Renewal – Macomb Criminal 

Justice Training Consortium                     
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has been a member agency of the Macomb Criminal 
Justice Training Consortium for five years;  
 
WHEREAS, The Consortium provides a comprehensive and cost effective training protocol to 
the Police Department at a cost of $160.00 per Officer, per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Membership allows the Police Department to send employees to many training 
classes at no additional cost or reduced rates, including the Macomb Criminal Justice Training 
Center’s Basic Police Academy, and access to their firearms range and Firearms Training 
Simulator; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a one-year 
membership renewal for fiscal year 2007 – 2008 with Macomb Community College for 
continued participation in the Criminal Justice Training Center Consortium at an estimated 
annual fee of $21,280.00, and approval is hereby GRANTED to use all other training services 
provided through the Consortium membership on a reduced cost basis.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Tents                    
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish and erect tents for 
the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, Dial Tent & Awning Co., 
Inc. of Saginaw, MI, and Ace Canvas & Tent of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$11,176.00 and $5,340.00 respectfully, at unit prices contained in the price quote submitted 
July 2, 2007 and bid tabulation opened April 16, 2007, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-6 

Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay                    
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-6, Northfield Parkway 
Mill and Overlay to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI  48084, at 
an estimated total cost of $557,674.26; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  

Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment 
Replacement Parts                    

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase three year (3) 
requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional years to the lowest bidders meeting 
specifications under Proposal A as follows, at prices and discounts contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 10, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, with a contract expiration of May 31, 2010: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Western Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Rowerdink Incorporated, Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Primary 69% off List Price 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Primary 69% off List Price 
Chevrolet/GM  Primary 50% to 67% off List Price 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Secondary 69% off List Price 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
GMC Medium Duty Truck Primary  31% to 50% off List Price 
Wiper Blades – Anco Primary 50% to 68% off Catalog  
Chevrolet/GM  Secondary 50% off List Price  

 
Motor City Truck Sales, Livonia, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Caterpillar Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Cummins  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Detroit Diesel  Primary  Cost Plus 15%  
Seals – National  Primary  Cost Plus 25% 
Sterling Heavy Duty  Primary  Wholesale 
Transmissions – Allison  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Truck Lite  Primary  Wholesale 
Ford Secondary Cost Plus 25% 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Secondary Cost Plus 25% 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  

 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  

 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% 
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Ford Primary  34% off List Price  

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet 
Kennametal Blades Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Dodge Primary  25% off List Price 
GMC Med. Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Primary  29% off Tymco Price Sheet 

 
Alert Emergency Equipment Group, Portland, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Go Rhino  Primary  15% off List Price 
Soundoff Signal  Secondary  20% off List Price  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet 

 
Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber (less) 25% 

 
John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts for the 
following product lines to the lowest bidders meeting specifications under Proposal B as 
follows, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened May 10, 2007, to 
commence May 7, 2008 and expire May 31, 2010: 
 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters    Primary Jobber (less) 50% 
Weatherhead  Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  
Weatherhead  Primary  20% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% 

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Root Plow Parts Primary Manufacturer List Price 
Swenson Spreader Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  

E-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #34 and #35 – Sidwell #88-20-02-
427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023 – Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice 
Haddad  

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice Haddad, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023, and the City of Troy, for 
the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard in the amount of $19,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Approval of Purchase Agreements and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permits, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #39 and #40 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-074 
and #88-20-02-279-071 – Michael J. and Arlene Healy  

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreements to Purchase Realty 
for Public Purposes between Michael J. and Arlene Healy, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amounts of 
$19,500.00 and $19,600.00, respectively, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete these purchases according 
to the agreements; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permits in the amounts of $300.00 each from Michael J. and Arlene 
Healy, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deeds and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permits with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for Troy School District (Transportation Building) – Project No. 

07.920.03  
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy School District 
for the installation of detention pond, water main, concrete approach and culverts at the 
Transportation Building and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Dequindre Road Taco Bell – Project No. 07.908.3  
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Sundance, Inc. for 
the installation of water main, underground detention system, concrete approach, curb and 
gutter, and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 

to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #66 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-002 
– Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush  

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-01-151-002, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of 
$54,950.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
F-3 Approval of Street Name Change – Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr Drive 

– No Action taken by City Council 
  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board 
c) City Council Appointments – Students:  Cable Advisory Committee    

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-07-223b 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) – 3 Year Terms (1-Troy School Board: 1-Troy Daze: 
 1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1 Year Term 
 
Gary Hauff  (School Board Rep)   Term Expires 07/31/08 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 

(c) City Council Appointments - Students 
 

Resolution #2007-07-223c 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following student to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Chi Song Term Expires 07/01/08 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
  
Resolution #2007-07-224 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, Troy City Council awarded a contract to provide for a 
pavement seam and fracture-sealing program with an option to renew for two (2) additional 
one-year periods, to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened September 29, 2004 (Resolution # 2004-10-546-E7);  
 
WHEREAS, Both options to renew were exercised and approved by Troy City Council in 
September 2005 and 2006 under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract 
(Resolutions 2005-09-416-E4e and 2006-09-367-E4e respectively); and 
 
WHEREAS, Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to keep costs for the 2007/08 program at 
original bid prices from 2004;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to provide a pavement seam and fracture-sealing 
program to Scodeller Construction, Inc. under the same terms and conditions at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation for ITB-COT 04-40 to expire June 30, 2008, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-4 Contract Addendum No. 1 – Contract 06-2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank 

Restoration Project 
  
Resolution #2007-07-225 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Addendum No. 1 to Contract No. 06-
2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration Project, in the amount of $36,845.56 for 
work performed by Dan’s Excavating, Inc. 12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315, 
and the revised total contract amount authorization is $1,261,904.38 including the 10% overall 
contingency as per the original contract award resolution, and the $36,845.56 amount for which 
Addendum No. 1 exceeds the 10% contingency on the Parks portion of the project.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
F-5 Personnel Evaluation – City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm  
  
Resolution #2007-07-226 
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
The annual compensation of Council Appointee Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney, is 
INCREASED by 1.8%, EFFECTIVE July 28, 2007.   
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 

Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District – August 6, 2007       
Noted and Filed 

  
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a. Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance – Subdivision Entranceway Signs  
b. Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance    

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 Council Comments Advanced  
 
Mayor Schilling stated that she has personally enjoyed the various music endeavors taking 
place in the community. She added that residents have commented on the corporate 
sponsorships to help share the costs of the events. She is also pleased to see the residents 
taking advantage of the other amenities that the City offers such as the Aquatic Center and the 
Library. 
 
Council Member Lambert recalled that the issue of City Council member absences was on the 
previous agenda and understands that illness or being absent from the community are the only 
two acceptable reasons for an excused absence. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew explained that the two reasons listed in the City Charter are an 
automatic excused absence. However, she further explained that any absence is excusable by 
a unanimous vote of City Council members. 
 
As a follow-up question in regard to Mr. Savage’s concerns about traffic signal timing, Council 
Member Lambert understands that any adjustments to the timing of the lights are made directly 
by the county. 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, Economic Development Services replied that Mr. 
Savage raised this concern previously at the June 18th City Council meeting and after further 
investigation, staff determined that the timing at the intersection Mr. Savage referred to is more 
than adequate for pedestrian crossing. However, Mr. Murphy advised that staff will look into the 
matter further. 
 
Council Member Stine asked if the report has been finalized on the gas main incident. Mr. 
Murphy replied that the report will be finalized and submitted at the next Regular City Council 
meeting. 
 
In response to Mr. Lenivov’s concerns, Council Member Lambert supports a City Charter 
revision that would allow a City Council member to retain their Council seat if they become a 
candidate for any City elective office. He then asked what would be the next step for possible 
placement on the November ballot. 
 
City Attorney Lori Bluhm responded that if there is support for a Charter revision by a majority 
of City Council, the proposed revision would then be referred to the Charter Revision 
Committee for their review and recommendation to City Council 
 
City Clerk Bartholomew added that the proposed ballot language must be filed with the County 
Clerk by August 26. She continued by stating that time is very tight because the ballot language 
must also be submitted to the Attorney General’s office for their approval. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm further explained that because the City of Troy now holds its local election 
with many other communities in odd year November elections, she is unsure about how many 
ballot questions will be submitted to the AG’s office and how long the overall process will take. 
 
Council Member Beltramini would still like City staff to move forward so that at the very least 
the paperwork will be complete for placement on the ballot for a future election. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2007-07-227 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
Vote on Resolution to Refer Proposed Charter Amendment to the Charter Revision 
Committee  
 
Resolution #2007-07-228 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS a proposed revision to Section 6.2 (g) – 
Vacancies in Elective Office of the Troy City Charter to the Charter Revision Committee. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
Council Member Stine shares Mr. Savage’s concerns about the Opticom Phase Selectors 
traffic light system for emergency vehicles traveling through intersections and traffic being 
delayed for lengthy periods of time after the emergency vehicles are no longer in the 
intersection. 
 
Chief Craft advised that all fire apparatus and ambulance service vehicles are equipped with 
the Opticom Phase Selectors system. In addition, he understands the Opticom Phase system 
is located at specific major intersections near all the fire stations. Chief Craft added that as part 
of the contract, they are required to test the system in the early morning and in the late evening 
hours to make certain it is functioning properly. Chief Craft is uncertain about how long the 
actual light delay is at the intersections equipped with the system. Chief Craft added that the 
Police Department has looked into equipping police vehicles with the system. However, 
because police vehicles travel at a higher rate of speed than fire vehicles, they decided against 
it. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2007-07-229 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action by reconsidering Resolution #2007-07-205 which does not 
appear as an item on the agenda. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Place Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-07-205 on a Future 
Agenda 
 
Resolution #2007-07-230 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to place Resolution 
#2007-07-205 for reconsideration at the next Regular City Council meeting where all seven City 
Council members are present. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 12, 2007 
b. Historic District Commission/Final – March 20, 2007  
c. Historic Commission/Final – March 27, 2007  
d. Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 8, 2007  
e. Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 5, 2007  
f. Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – June 7, 2007 
g. Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 11, 2007  
h. Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 13, 2007  
i. Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 13, 2007  
j. Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 19, 2007 
k. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 26, 2007  
l. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 26, 2007 
m. Planning Commission/Draft – July 10, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a. Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Community & Economic 

Development Steering Committee  
b. Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of June, 2007 
c. Building Department – Permits Issued January through June, 2007 
d. Building Department – Permits Issued July, 2006 through June, 2007  
e. Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for June, 2007  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a. Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Dan Daniel from Craig W. Floyd, Chairman & CEO of 

the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund, Regarding Honor Guard 
Participation During Their 19th Annual Candlelight Vigil  

b. Letter to Mayor and Council from Catherine Buck, President of the Oakland County 
Clerks Association, Commending Tonni Bartholomew, Barbara Pallotta, Mike Leavitt, 
Troy Police Department and Troy Fire Department for Hosting the Michigan Association 
of Municipal Clerks Conference  

c. Letter of Thanks to Ann Blizzard from Justin Hooks, Alliance Mobile Health, 
Commending Lifeguard Staff at the Troy Aquatic Center  

d. Letter to Chief Craft from Father Stratton Dorozenski, St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox 
Church, Regarding the Assistance Received from Officers During the 14th Annual OPA 
Greek Festival  

e. Letter to Chief Craft from Circuit Court Judge Edward Sosnick in Appreciation of the 
Efforts and Commitment of Officer Breidenich on the SAVE Task Force  

f. Letter of Thanks from the Peitsch Family Regarding the Troy Aquatic Center and the 
Attentive Lifeguards   

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (File Number ZOTA 232) – Big Beaver Overlay District 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding 
Troy Community Center Pass Holder Survey Results 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Manager as Permitted by 
Council Resolution #2007-07-215b   

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 23, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:02 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:17 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:17 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and Troy Chamber of Commerce was held 
Monday, August 1, 2007, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the 
Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL:  

 
Mayor Schilling advised that the purpose of the joint meeting is to update both parties on points 
of interest that affect them both.  

1. Economic Development Update Brian Murphy 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager-Economic Development Services stated that there has 
been success working with the State of Michigan and Oakland County in bringing several large 
companies to Troy. He continued by stating that although the state economy is still suffering, 
Troy’s vacancy rates have improved over the past fiscal year.  He further added that a number 
of businesses are still in the stages of considering relocating their businesses to Troy. 
 
A. U of M / ULI - Michele Hodges provided a brief overview updating the status of the 

University of Michigan / Urban Land Institute study. 
 

B. Maple Road Corridor Study - Michele Hodges, President-Chamber of Commerce advised 
that the Maple Road Corridor Study is officially in print at this time and consequently, they 
now have a blueprint to work from in furthering the advancement in continuing the 
investment along Maple Road.  
 

C. Hybrid Development Center - Kevin Shea reported that the Hybrid Development Center is 
a joint venture of General Motors, DSX and BMW, and currently houses over 500 
engineers. Mr. Shea explained that their philosophy was to build the best company with 
the best employees in the best location, and they chose Troy for a variety of reasons. Mr. 
Shea advised their goal is to take proven concepts and turn them into technology that will 
transfer directly into vehicles. 
 
  

Troy City Council Troy Chamber of Commerce 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling John Bailey Anna Maiuri 
Robin Beltramini Marie Baloga  James McIntire (Absent) 
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield  (Absent) Julia Baran John Podsiadlik 
Wade Fleming Ann Comiskey (Absent) Kent Sharkey (Absent) 
Martin F. Howrylak Barry Demp Kevin Shea 
David A. Lambert David Grenville Duane Swanson 
Jeanne M. Stine Tasneem Hakim John J. Tagle 
 Carmen Johnson Ted Wilson (Absent) 
 Michael J. Kidder (Absent) Patricia Zatina 
 William A. Lafontaine  

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

D. Automation Alley - Kevin Shea reported Automation Alley is over 600 members strong and 
they are actively pursing all of the emerging sectors that are part of the Automation Alley 
plan to bring businesses to southeastern Michigan as well as Oakland County. He 
continued by stating that Automation Alley is not only unusual for this area, but it is also 
unusual anywhere in the country to have a business entity of this type for the purpose of 
attracting business. 

2. Master Plan Update Brian Murphy 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager-Economic Development Services advised that a copy of 
the Master Plan Update is included in the packet dated July 2007 outlining the tasks that are 
going to be implemented as they move forward with the update. Mr. Murphy expects that the 
final Master Plan will be completed in December. 
 
3. Image & Arts Council Update Michele Hodges 
 
Michele Hodges, President-Chamber of Commerce indicated that the Image & Arts Council is 
another of the Chamber of Commerce’s grassroots initiatives. She continued by stating that 
they are hoping to organize formally but outlined several projects they are working currently 
working on as an informal organization. Ms. Hodges added that the Image & Art Council is 
working toward developing a niche that could contribute to the economic development of the 
community. 
 
4. MRDI – Diversity Updates Michele Hodges 
 
Michele Hodges, President-Chamber of Commerce explained MRDI is an acronym for 
Michigan Roundtable for Diversity and Inclusion. She continued by stating that diversity is 
fundamental for moving forward in the global marketplace and that the city has a great history 
of working with the MRDI. 
 
5. One D Michele Hodges 
 
Michele Hodges, President-Chamber of Commerce believes One D is a good strategy to 
embrace and encouraged City Council and staff to adopt a resolution after reviewing its 
philosophy in full. She explained the One D strategy assists organizations in overcoming the 
economic challenges they face. 
 
6. Update of Troy Futures – Accomplishments Phil Nelson 
 
Phil Nelson, City Manager summarized a report requested by City Council outlining actions 
taken to initiate some of the factors of the futures report. He added that also included in the 
packet are recommendations of the planning and policy documents and that Council has 
initiated a lot of different actions and activities as a result of the report.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:37 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  
E-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



 

 

  July 26, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein

Charles T. Craft, 
William S. Nelson

 
RE:  Standard Purchas

Emergency Medic
 

Background 
• On June 2, 2003, Troy

medical services with a
bidder submitting the b
$463,623.00 per year {

 
• On September 18, 200

Troy City Council unde
contract. {Resolution #

 
• In the past four years, 

emergency medical se
the response time requ
satisfaction. On a scale

 
• Alliance Mobile Health 

Ambulance Services) c
in 1990, as a not-for-pr
systems. CAAS Accred
standard" determined b
medical services provid

 
• AMH has purchased a 

 
• Due to the best value pr

not done; since the City
minimum specified requ

 
Financial Considerations 

• Funding for this service
– 1st Responder Servic
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
 

City Manager 

, Purchasing Director 
Chief of Police 
, Fire Chief 

ing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option  –  
al Services  –   

 City Council approved a three-year contract to provide for emergency 
n option to renew for three additional one-year periods to the low 
est value proposal, Alliance Mobile Health at an estimated cost of 
Resolution #2003-06-281}. 

6, the first of three one-year options was exercised and approved by 
r the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the original 
2006-09-369} 

Alliance Mobile Health has done an excellent job handling the 
rvices for the City of Troy. Not only has Alliance meet or exceeded 
irements every month, quarterly surveys are conducted on patient 
 of 1-4, 4 being the best, Alliance Mobile Health averages 3.79.  

is the first and only CAAS (Commission on Accreditation of 
redited EMS provider based in Oakland County.  CAAS was formed 
ofit agency to be a standard bearer for medical transportation 
itation signifies that ambulance services have met the "gold 
y the ambulance industry to be essential in a modern emergency 
er. 

new office and garage space in Troy.   

ocess used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market survey was 
 utilizes an evaluation process in which bidders are required to meet 
irements, along with a weighted score for level of services.   

 
 is available in the Police Department Uniform Patrol Account 
e # 315.7802.010.    

Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



July 26, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re  Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency Medical Services 
 
Legal Considerations  

• RFQ/RFP 02-56, a three-year contract to provide emergency medical services with 
an option to renew for three additional one-year periods was competitively bid and 
opened on January 31, 2003, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 
Policy Considerations  

• AMH has forged an excellent working relationship with the Troy Police and Fire 
Departments. AMH has coordinated and conducted many police and fire training sessions, 
and have been a valued member of the City of Troy Special Response Unit. (Goal I & IV)     

 
Options 

• City management recommends approval of the second one-year option to renew for Emergency 
Medical Services with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, for an estimated annual cost of 
$500,000.00 under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions as the original contract to 
expire September 30, 2008, which allows for verifiable rate increases using the consumer price 
index inflation calculator.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DO  G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – AmbulanceServicesRev 07.07.doc 
 

Page 2 of 2 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 26, 2007 
 
 
 
City of Troy 
Director of Purchasing 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI   48084 
 
Dear Ms. Leirstein: 
 
Alliance Mobile Health agrees to continue providing EMS services to the 
City of Troy under the current three (1) year extensions.   The services are 
to provide emergency medical paramedic first responder services to the 
City of Troy.    All of the terms and conditions outlined in the contract 
remain acceptable to our organization. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 248-
495-5634. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Laurie Thiel, CEO 
Alliance Mobile Health 
2045 Austin Drive 
Troy, MI  48083 
 
Copies to: Chief William Nelson 
  Sgt. Don Ostrowski 













April 22, 2003                                                                             

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager                                                                     
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director                                                                 
Police Chief Charles Craft                                                                                   
Fire Chief William Nelson                                                                  

RE:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award –    
Emergency Medical Services Contract  

RECOMMENDATION 
On January 31, 2003, request for proposals (RFP) were opened for a three-year contract for 
Emergency Medical Services with an option to extend for three additional one-year periods.  
It is respectfully recommended that an award be made to the highest scoring, lowest bidder, 
Alliance Mobile Health at an estimated cost of $463,623 annually or $ 1,390,869 for the 
three years of the contract, at unit prices contained in the attached tabulation dated 1/31/03.  
If approved by Council, this RFP shall be awarded to the recommended bidder contingent 
upon submission of proper proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all 
specified requirements.  
 
Alliance Mobile Health received the highest recommendations from the committee of 
evaluators from the City of Troy. Not only did this company furnish the most impressive and 
complete proposal package; they also prepared a proposal with the lowest prices.  

SELECTION PROCESS 
The selection of the service provider was based upon weighted criteria including the RFP 
responses and price.  Using a 100 point scoring process, prices were equated to the 
amounts budgeted for Ambulance Services ($0 = 100 points), and a scoring formula for First 
Responder Service.  The final score calculation was determined as follows: 

   40% x Ambulance Service Price Score                                                                                       
40% x Medical First Responder Price Score                                                                
20% x Average of Service Weighted Scores  

100% = Final Weighted Score 

NOTE:  The estimated cost of $1.4 million for the three years is based upon 21,900 hours per year used in the 
deployment plan acceptable for medical services.   

BUDGET  
The current contract expires on October 1, 2003, and the new one would commence at that 
time. The Police Department has budgeted funds for this service in the Uniform Patrol – 1st 
Responders Account #315.7802.010 for the fiscal year 2003-2004.    

 25 Proposals Sent                                                                                                                                                                     
5 Firms attended Pre-bid Meeting                                                                                                                            
4 Proposal Responses Received                                                                                                                                                          
1 No Bid: (1) Company bidding through another ambulance service. 

Prepared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY–  
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 

u 25 Request for Proposal documents sent to prospective bidders  
u 4 responses were received 
u Alliance Mobile Health was the most qualified bidder by receiving 

the highest score  
 
Final Score Calculation: 
 

40% x    Ambulance Service Price Score 
40% x    Medical First Responder Price Score 
20% x    Other Score 
 
100%  Final Weighted Score 

 
* In order to equate the price and the weighted evaluation process scoring, all scores were 

converted into a score with the base of 100 
 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 

 
FINAL SCORING 

COMPANY  SCORE 
Alliance Mobile Health 89 
Community EMS Inc. 88 
American Medical Response (AMR) 66 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 15 

 
Final Score Calculations:    8 MINUTES 

 
VENDORS: 
   

Alliance 
Mobile Health 

Community 
EMS Inc. 

American Medical 
Response  (AMR) 

Universal – 
Macomb 
Ambulance 

Score 
 

    

Ambulance Price 
Score:  (x .40) =  

 100 x .40 =40 100 x .40 =40 100 x .40 =   40  0  x .40 =   0 

     
First Responder Price 
Score:  (x .40) = 

   75 x .40 = 30   75 x .40 = 30   25 x .40 =   10  0  x .40 =   0 

     
Service Weight Score:  
             (x  .20) = 

  94 x .20 =  19  92 x .20 =  18  79 x .20 =    16 74 x .20 = 15 

     

FINAL SCORE: 89** 88 66 15 
 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD



ADDITIONAL SCORING SUMMARIES: 
 

 
PRICE SCORE – AMBULANCE SERVICE: 8 MINUTES 
 
Vendors: SCORE 
Alliance Mobile Health 100 
Community EMS Inc. 100 
American Medical Response (AMR) 100 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 0 
 
PRICE SCORE – FIRST RESPONDERS SERVICE: 
 
Vendors: Score 
Alliance Mobile Health 75 
Community EMS Inc. 75 
American Medical Response (AMR) 25 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance   0 
 
 
WEIGHTED SCORE: 
 
Raters: 1 2 AVERAGE 
Vendors:    
Alliance Mobile Health 96 92 94 
Community EMS Inc. 94 89 92 
American Medical Response (AMR) 79 79 79 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 76 72 74 
   
 
 
   
G:/BidAward 01-02 / Best Value – RFP – EMS Emergency Medical Services - WeightedRatingSummary 03-03.doc 
 











 
 

July 30, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Patrol Rifles & Accessories 
 
Background 

 On June 20, 2007, bid proposals were received to purchase new rifles and accessories for 
the Troy Police Department  

 52 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with five bidders responding and eight bids 
received.  One vendor submitted a statement of no bid due to territorial restrictions. 

 
Financial Considerations 

 Funds for Patrol Rifles are available in the 2007/2008 Police Administration Drug Enforcement 
Account # 401305.7978.065. 

 Due to budget limitations, Proposals B and C for Accessories are being rejected at this time.  
  

Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT07-24 was competitively bid and opened with five bidders responding. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying patrol 

rifles to the City of Troy.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 The acquisition of these patrol rifles will enhance the Police Department’s ability to protect its 

citizens against attacks from criminal/terrorist elements.   (Goal #I) 
 A well-trained and prepared Police Department will enhance the safety and livability of the 

community. (Goal #I) 
 

Options 
 City management and the Police Department recommend awarding the contract for the 

purchase of (50) Smith & Wesson M&P 15 Patrol Rifles as specified under Proposal A, to 
Michigan Police Equipment of Charlotte, MI, for an estimated total cost of $43,650.00.  

 
 In addition, staff recommends the rejection of Proposals B and C due to budgetary limitations. 

 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Rifles 07-07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-24
Opening Date -- 6/20/07 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 3
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 RIFLES & ACCESSORIES

BID # 1 BID # 2 BID #3
VENDOR NAME:

EST QTY        DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL
Proposal A:

50 Rifles - Semi Auto .223 873.00$   43,650.00$ 979.00$    48,950.00$ 1,019.00$  50,950.00$
Manufacturer Smith & Wesson M&P 15 Rock River Tactical CARA4 Colt AR 6721

Proposal B: Accessories
50 Setina Manufacturing Double

Vertical Weapon Mount System No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
Proposal C: Accessories

50 Magazine Thigh Rig Holster No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
50 Streamlight LED Foregrip Lights 85.00$    4,250.00$   85.00$      4,250.00$    85.00$       4,250.00$  

100 3 Volt Lithium Batteries 1.20$      120.00$      1.20$        120.00$       1.20$         120.00$     
50 Streamlight TLR-1 Weapon Light 20.75$    1,037.50$   20.75$      1,037.50$    20.75$       1,037.50$  

Forearm
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS: 49,057.50$  54,357.50$  56,357.50$ 

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation: M - F   8:30 to 5:00 M - F   8:30 to 5:00 M - F   8:30 to 5:00
24 Hr. Phone #:     313-600-7484     313-600-7484     313-600-7484

TIME PERIOD - Additional Orders 12/15/2007 12/15/2007 12/15/2007

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY:   Full Manufacturers   Full Manufacturers   Full Manufacturers 

DELIVERY DATE: 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days

EXCEPTIONS: None None None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
Ray O'Herron Co. Inc. 

BOLD FACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER
ATTEST:
Sgt.Scott McWilliams
Yvonne Ranzinger
Antonio Cascioli
Linda Bockstanz _______________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 07-24 Rifles & Accessories

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION

Michigan Police
Equipment Company Equipment Company Equipment Company

Michigan Police Michigan Police



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-24
Opening Date -- 6/20/07 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 3
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 RIFLES & ACCESSORIES

Bid #1 Bid #2
VENDOR NAME:

Supply, Inc. Supply, Inc.

EST QTY        DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL
Proposal A:

50 Rifles - Semi Auto .223 885.00$    44,250.00$ 1,160.97$ 58,048.50$  1,076.24$  53,812.00$ 
Manufacturer Smith & Wesson M&P 15 Colt AR 6721 Rock River AR1221

Proposal B: Accessories
50 Setina Manufacturing Double

Vertical Weapon Mount System No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
Proposal C: Accessories

50 Magazine Thigh Rig Holster No Bid No Bid 41.11$     2,055.50$   No Bid No Bid
50 Streamlight LED Foregrip Lights 94.49$     4,724.50$  88.22$     4,411.00$   88.22$      4,411.00$  
100 3 Volt Lithium Batteries 1.75$       175.00$     1.35$       135.00$       1.35$        135.00$     
50 Streamlight TLR-1 Weapon Light 19.49$     974.50$     21.57$     1,078.50$   21.57$      1,078.50$  

Forearm
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS: 50,124.00$ 65,728.50$  59,436.50$ 

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation: M-F   8:30 to 5:00 M-F   8:00 to 5:00 M-F   8:00 to 5:00
24 Hr. Phone #:  517-974-4276 772-538-2528 772-538-2528

TIME PERIOD - Additional Orders Prior to 12/31/07   90 days  - ARO   90 days  - ARO

TERMS: Net 30

WARRANTY: Blank     Limited Lifetime     Limited Lifetime

DELIVERY DATE:   30-60 Days  - ARO   30-60 Days - ARO   30-60 Days - ARO

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Substituted Blackhawk Substituted Blackhawk
#561602BK for S.O. #561602BK for S.O.
Tech item Tech item - 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 07-24 Rifles & Accessories

Net 10

CMP Distributors, Inc. Lawsmen & Shooters Lawsmen & Shooters

Net 10

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-24
Opening Date -- 6/20/07 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 3
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 RIFLES & ACCESSORIES

VENDOR NAME:
dba Vance's Law Enforcement

EST QTY        DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL
Proposal A:

50 Rifles - Semi Auto .223 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
Manufacturer

Proposal B: Accessories
50 Setina Manufacturing Double

Vertical Weapon Mount System 547.90$    27,395.00$  No Bid No Bid
Proposal C: Accessories

50 Magazine Thigh Rig Holster No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
50 Streamlight LED Foregrip Lights 116.05$    5,802.50$    87.50$     4,375.00$      
100 3 Volt Lithium Batteries 3.46$        346.00$       1.25$       125.00$        
50 Streamlight TLR-1 Weapon Light No Bid No Bid 23.50$     1,175.00$      

Forearm
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS: 33,543.50$   5,675.00$      

CONTACT INFORMATION: Tues - F   10 am to 8 pm
Hrs of Operation: M - F     8 to 5 SAT 10 am to 6 pm
24 Hr. Phone #: 517-647-5365 614-471-7000

TIME PERIOD - Additional Orders Pricing Good thru 12/31/07 90 Days

TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: 1 yr - Parts & Labor Lifetime (Except Batteries)

DELIVERY DATE: 15 - 21 Busness Days     30 days  - ARO

EXCEPTIONS: No bid on weapons. Alert Blank
does not have  FFL 
License. Bid lighting only

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 07-24 Rifles & Accessories

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group

Vance Outdoors Inc.

Net 30

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION



 
 

July 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Bare Root Street Trees 
  

Background 
• On May 22, 2007, four (4) Requests for Proposal were received and opened to provide for a fall 

planting of 2500 residential ROW trees and to provide 200 bare root trees to Sylvan Glen/Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course (materials only). 

• 80 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with four bidders responding, and one statement of no 
bid received. 

 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds for 2500 residential ROW trees (installed) are available in the 2007 – 2008 Subdivision 

Improvements Capital Account # 401780.7974.130. 
• Funds for 200 bare root trees (materials only) will be available in the 2007 – 2008 Golf Course Land 

Improvements account # 788.7974.130 
  

Legal Considerations 
• ITB-COT07-18 was competitively bid and opened with four bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the planting of bare root 

trees for the City of Troy.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• Trees enhance the livability of the community. (Goal #I) 
• An attractive City encourages investment and development. (Goal #III) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding the contract for the 

planting of 2500 bare root residential ROW trees and to furnish only 200 bare root trees to the low 
bidder, Marine City Nursery of Marine City MI, for an estimated total cost of $190,400.00 at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened May 22, 2007. 

 
 
 
Rwh    G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Street Trees 06.07.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY Page 1 of 1
Opening Date -- 5/22/07 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 07-18
Date Prepared --  7/10/07 STREET TREES

VENDOR NAME: ** Marine City County Line Steele's Sinacori 
Nursery Co Nurseries & Services, LLC Landscaping

Landscaping Inc
CHECK #: 338087 1318019 2812 102225888
CHECK AMOUNT 2,000.00$          2,000.00$          2,000.00$           2,000.00$          

PROPOSAL:  To Provide and Install for the City of Troy an Estimated 2500 Street Trees and Furnish only 200 Trees 
for the Golf Courses - Fall 2007 - In Accordance with the Specifications

PROPOSAL A:  (2500 Trees)
PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION 72.00$               75.00$                119.49$              148.00$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR 2500 TREES  180,000.00$      187,500.00$      298,725.00$       370,000.00$      

PROPOSAL B:  Materials Only
PRICE PER TREE    (200 Trees) 52.00$                150.00$              84.00$                100.00$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST 10,400.00$        30,000.00$        16,800.00$         20,000.00$        

LIST OF SEVEN TREE TYPES Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
How many listed: 7 7 7 7

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation 8 to 5 7 to 5 8 to 5 8 to 5
Phone Number 810-560-9099 269-621-4543 248-852-6140 586-703-5203

STATEMENT OF GUARANTEE Blank One (1) year Blank Blank

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:  Net 30 days  Net 30 days  Blank Net 30 days

TERMS Net 30 days Net 30 days  30 Net -10th Prox 30 days Net

DELIVERY As required Hand As required Blank

GUARANTEE

EXCEPTIONS Blank None None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

NO BID: 
Ray Wiegand Nursery ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Ron Hynd
Cheryl Stewart
Linda Bockstanz

__________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 07-18 STREET TREES

As Specified



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 30, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Troy Community Coalition 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Funding requirements were previously approved by the City Council resolution #2006-08-324, 

resolution #2005-09-416, resolution #2004-09-454, resolution #2003-09-474, resolution #2002-07-
427, and resolution #2001-09-449. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Troy Community Coalition, 

account #305.7802.109 has been designated for the funding of this program. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 
 The Troy Community Coalition will provide community services to prevent drug and alcohol abuse.  

The services provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City of Troy. 
 
Options: 
 
 The Police Department requests approval to continue to provide funding to the TROY 

COMMUNITY COALITION in the amount of $100, 000.00 for the 2007/2008 fiscal year. 
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       _________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Prepared by Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d











campbellld
Text Box
E-04e







campbellld
Text Box
E-05





campbellld
Text Box
E-06

















campbellld
Text Box
E-07















       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral 
Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council 
Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; and Municipal 
Building Authority c) City Council Appointments Students: Planning 
Commission     

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



campbellld
Text Box
F-02

















































Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
July 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowing 
 
Background 
 
 The City of Troy Streets Division of the Public Works Department manages mowing operations for 

City-maintained detention ponds, major road rights of way, and undeveloped properties. This 
service was approved by City Council on May 14, 2007 with Rasin’s Landscape & Associates, Inc. 
of Troy, MI (Resolution #2007-05-142-E4e).  
 

o Rasin’s Landscape was notified to proceed with mowing operations May 15, 2007, as all 
contract documents had been executed. 

o The first detention pond mowing started May 23, 2007, and was completed June 1, 2007. 
The contract mowing cycle for detention ponds is on a three-week rotation. 

o The first right of way mowing began and was completed June 12, 2007. The contract 
mowing cycle for rights of way is a four-week rotation. 

o The first undeveloped properties mowing began June 15, 2007, and have yet to be 
completed. This mowing operation was approximately half complete as of July 30, 2007. 

o Due to performance issues with Rasin’s, on July 11, 2007 the City of Troy authorized the 
second low bidder, Bob’s Landscaping, to mow one cycle of the detention ponds. 

o Rasin’s Landscape should have begun the second mowing of the detention ponds the week 
of June 11, 2007, the third mowing as of the week of July 2, 2007 and the fourth as of the 
week of July 23, 2007. 

o Rasin’s Landscape should have begun the second right of way mowing as of the week of 
July 2, 2007 and the third mowing of the right of way as of the week of July 30, 2007 

o Rasin’s Landscape has failed to supply equipment and manpower to meet any of the 
required mowing rotations as required in the contract. 

o General Specifications 12 and 13 in the contract require timely response to the City’s 
request for service. We have made numerous attempts to contact Rasin’s and they have 
been non-responsive to staff inquiries.  These occurrences have been documented and are 
a direct violation of the contract specifications.  

o Attached are photos of mowing conditions as of 7/16/07. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



Page 2 of 2 

July 25, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowing 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 The City’s cost under this contract will more than double going from an average $50,000.00 to 

over $120,000.00 per year, which is less than the $130,000.00 the City paid for services in 2006.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Rasin’s Landscaping will receive a written notification of default and remedies for reinstatement as 

a potential vendor after three (3) years. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 To enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I)  

 
Options 
 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved 

on May 14, 2007, to Rasin’s Landscape & Associates, Inc. of Troy MI, for Street Rough Weed 
Mowing.  (Resolution #2007-05-142-E4e)  Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the 
next lowest bidder, Bob’s Landscaping Service, Inc. of St Clair Shores, MI, at unit prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened April 23, 2007.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Rescind-ReAward StreetsRoughMowing 07.07.doc 





CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-12
Opening Date -- 4/23/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/26/07 MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: **

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL:  MOWING SERVICES FOR RIGHT OF WAYS, DETENTION PONDS, & UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES
      FOR THREE YEARS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL YEARS

PROPOSAL A: MOWING ROW, DETENTION PONDS, & UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES
GROUP #1 -- RIGHT OF WAYS -- 
Est Qty - 92,000 lnft x 7 mows

2007 0.0066 0.0750 0.2800
2008 0.0066 0.0850 0.2900
2009 0.0066 0.0850 0.3000

TOTAL COST per linear foot $ 0.0198 $ 0.2450 $ 0.8700

GROUP #2 -- DETENTION PONDS -- Per Mow
Est Qty - 112 acres x 9 mows 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009

1/4 Acre or Less 8.00$     8.00$  8.00$  30.00$ 32.00$ 34.00$ 30.00$  30.00$  31.00$  
1/4 to 1/2 Acre 16.00$    16.00$ 16.00$ 35.00$ 37.00$ 39.00$ 38.00$  38.00$  39.00$  
1/2 to 3/4 Acre 24.00$    24.00$ 24.00$ 40.00$ 42.00$ 44.00$ 42.00$  42.00$ 43.00$ 
3/4 to 1 Acre 30.00$    30.00$ 30.00$ 45.00$ 47.00$ 49.00$ 49.00$  49.00$ 50.00$ 
Acreage 30.00$    30.00$ 30.00$ 50.00$ 52.00$ 54.00$ 49.00$  49.00$ 50.00$ 
TOTAL COST per mow 108.00$       108.00$   108.00$   200.00$    210.00$    220.00$    208.00$    208.00$    213.00$    

GROUP #3 -- UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES --
Est Qty - 120 acres x 3 mows 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009

1/4 Acre or Less 15.00$    15.00$ 15.00$ 30.00$ 32.00$ 34.00$ 30.00$  30.00$  31.00$  
1/4 to 1/2 Acre 22.00$    22.00$ 22.00$ 35.00$ 37.00$ 39.00$ 38.00$  38.00$  39.00$  
1/2 to 3/4 Acre 32.00$    32.00$ 32.00$ 40.00$ 42.00$ 44.00$ 42.00$  42.00$  43.00$  
3/4 to 1 Acre 38.00$    38.00$ 38.00$ 45.00$ 47.00$ 49.00$ 49.00$  49.00$  50.00$  
Acreage 40.00$    40.00$ 40.00$ 50.00$ 52.00$ 54.00$ 49.00$  49.00$ 50.00$ 
TOTAL COST per mow 147.00$       147.00$   147.00$   200.00$    210.00$    220.00$    208.00$    208.00$    213.00$    

PROPOSAL B: (OPTIONAL SERVICE) LINE TRIMMING

2007 $ 19.00 $ 30.00 $ No Bid
2008 $ 19.00 $ 31.00 $ No Bid
2009 $ 19.00 $ 32.50 $ No Bid

GRAND TOTAL PROPOSAL B:

SITE Visited Site    Y or N Yes Yes Yes
INSPECTION Date 4/21/07 4/12/07 4/13/07

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation 6 AM to 7 PM 7 AM to 5 PM 7 AM to 8 PM
24 Hr Phone # 248-830-9288 810-499-5043 248-942-3405
Pager Blank N/A Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed    Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 21 30 Days Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

The Original Williams Weed
Mowing

500.00$                              
46451 193500283-5

Rasins Landscape & Bob's Landscaping Service
Inc.

500.00$                              500.00$                             

Assoc, Inc.
822288614

Cost per Linear Foot

57.00$                                93.50$                               -$                                   

Hourly Rate Including All Costs



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-12
Opening Date -- 4/23/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/26/07 MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: **

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes

** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST: ___________________________
Debra Painter Susan Leirstein CPPB
Thomas Rosewarne Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G: ITB-COT 07-12 Mowing Services

Inc. MowingAssoc, Inc.
Rasins Landscape & Bob's Landscaping Service The Original Williams Weed



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-12
Opening Date -- 4/23/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/26/07 MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL:  MOWING SERVICES FOR RIGHT OF WAYS, DETENTION PONDS, & UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES
      FOR THREE YEARS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL YEARS

PROPOSAL A: MOWING ROW, DETENTION PONDS, & UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES
GROUP #1 -- RIGHT OF WAYS -- 

Est Qty - 92,000 lnft x 7 mows
2007 0.3500 0.0875 0.0250
2008 0.3500 0.0875 0.0250
2009 0.4500 0.0925 0.0250

TOTAL COST per linear foot $ 1.1500 $ 0.2675 $ 0.0750

GROUP #2 -- DETENTION PONDS -- Per Mow
Est Qty - 112 acres x 9 mows 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009
1/4 Acre or Less 15.00$   15.00$   17.00$   31.93$  31.93$  31.93$  35.00$   35.00$   35.00$   
1/4 to 1/2 Acre 30.00$   30.00$   32.00$   40.17$  40.17$  40.17$  45.00$   45.00$   45.00$   
1/2 to 3/4 Acre 45.00$   45.00$   47.00$   44.29$  44.29$  44.29$  50.00$   50.00$   50.00$   
3/4 to 1 Acre 60.00$   60.00$   62.00$   51.50$  51.50$  51.50$  57.50$   57.50$   57.50$   
Acreage 60.00$   60.00$   62.00$  51.50$ 51.50$ 51.50$ 57.50$   57.50$  57.50$  
TOTAL COST per mow 210.00$    210.00$    220.00$     219.39$   219.39$   219.39$   245.00$      245.00$     245.00$     

GROUP #3 -- UNDEVELOPED PROPERTIES --
Est Qty - 120 acres x 3 mows 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009
1/4 Acre or Less 15.00$   15.00$   17.00$   31.93$  31.93$  31.93$  35.00$   35.00$   35.00$   
1/4 to 1/2 Acre 30.00$   30.00$   32.00$   40.17$  40.17$  40.17$  45.00$   45.00$   45.00$   
1/2 to 3/4 Acre 45.00$   45.00$   47.00$   44.29$  44.29$  44.29$  50.00$   50.00$   50.00$   
3/4 to 1 Acre 60.00$   60.00$   62.00$   51.50$  51.50$  51.50$  57.50$   57.50$   57.50$   
Acreage 60.00$   60.00$   62.00$  51.50$ 51.50$ 51.50$ 57.50$   57.50$  57.50$  
TOTAL COST per mow 210.00$    210.00$    220.00$     219.39$   219.39$   219.39$   245.00$      245.00$     245.00$     

PROPOSAL B: (OPTIONAL SERVICE) LINE TRIMMING

2007 $ No Bid $ 17.00 $ 20.00
2008 $ No Bid $ 17.50 $ 20.00
2009 $ No Bid $ 18.00 $ 20.00

GRAND TOTAL PROPOSAL B:

SITE Visited Site    Y or N Yes Yes Yes
INSPECTION: Date 4/18/07 4/18/07 4/10/07

CONTACT INFO:Hrs of Operation 7 AM to 6 PM 7 AM to 8 PM 9 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone # 586-942-1228 248-627-3335 248-889-9067
Pager 313-990-3693 N/A Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet XX
Signed    Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Blank Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Will provide additional Insurance N/A Blank
certificate reflecting required
coverage

60.00$                                      

Distinctive Styles LLC Williams Weed Mowing Inc.

222-21649-1 693522211
500.00$                                  500.00$                               

Lawn & Floor Maintenance

Cost per Linear Foot

Pro-Turf Management

21822
500.00$                                    

Hourly Rate Including All Costs

Plus $2,600.00

-$                                        52.50$                                 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-12
Opening Date -- 4/23/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/26/07 MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIREY or N Yes Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 07-12 Mowing Services

Pro-Turf Management
Lawn & Floor Maintenance

Distinctive Styles LLC Williams Weed Mowing Inc.



 
 

Photos Taken 7/16/07 
These photos illustrate the state of mowing of the right of ways on  

Wattles and Long Lake 
 

 



 
 

Photos Taken 7/16/07 
These photos illustrate the state of mowing of the Oriole detention pond. 

 

 



                     
 

Photos Taken 7/16/07 
These photos illustrate the state of mowing of the Randall  detention pond. 

 

 
 

 



 
 

Photos Taken 7/16/07 
These photos illustrate the state of mowing of Vacant property on Wattles. 

 

 







 

 
 
July 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance 
    Subdivision Entranceway Signs 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 We have received sign permit applications for two signs to replace the existing subdivision 

entranceway signs for the Lake Charnwood Subdivision.  The applications are for 27 square foot signs 
to be placed symmetrically at the intersection of Killarney and South Boulevard.  Unfortunately, we 
have to deny these permit applications because the current provisions of the Troy Sign Ordinance 
allow for only one sign for a subdivision entrance.  This is not the first time that such a request has 
been submitted and denied.  The applicant, as others have in the past, does have the option of 
applying for a variance before the Building Code Board of Appeals to allow for two signs.  We however 
believe that this is an unnecessary burden on the applicant and that the Sign Ordinance should be 
revised in such a way that would allow two signs to be installed while still maintaining the maximum 
100 square foot sign area.  We have prepared and attached proposed language revising Section 
85.02.05 C of the Sign Ordinance that will accomplish this task. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Sign Ordinance per Section 5.3 of the City Charter. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal 1) 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government. (Goal 2) 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the proposed revision. 
 City Council can deny the proposed revision. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



REVISE Section 85.02.05 C of the Troy Sign Ordinance to read as follows: 
 
C. Specific Zoning District Regulations  

1. R-1 and R-2 Districts: Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be allowed as 
follows:  
a. For Special Approval Uses listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 of the Troy City 

Code: One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area.  
b. For Subdivision Entrances: A maximum of two signs not exceeding a total of One 

sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area.  
c. For Subdivisions Under Development: One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in 

area is allowed until such time as a certificate of occupancy is issued for all 
homes in the subdivision.  



 
 
Date August 1, 2007 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to The Troy City 
Charter Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 

  
Background: 
 
 City Council, at their meeting of July 23, 2007, forwarded a request to the Charter Revision 

Committee to review an amendment Charter Section 6.2(g) - Vacancies in Elective Office to 
provide a mechanism to allow Council members whose terms are expiring at the next municipal 
election the ability to file for elective office, other than to succeed oneself, without resignation 
from their office. Attached is a copy of the Charter Revision Committee’s July 31, 2007 Minutes, 
a red-lined copy of the City Charter indicating their proposal and the proposed ballot language. 
 
The Charter Revision Committee met on Tuesday, July 31, 2007, to review a possible 
amendment to the City Charter Section 6.2(g) - Vacancies in Elective Office. Attached is a draft 
copy of the minutes of their meeting.  
 
As noted in the minutes of the Charter Revision Committee July 31, 2007 meeting, the committee 
reviewed the proposed amendment from City administration. It was the consensus of the 
committee to amend the proposed amendment to provide for a 21 days notice of withdrawal from 
office by Council Candidates wishing to file for an elective office other than to succeed oneself.  
The original ballot amendment wording as proposed by City administration, absent the Charter 
Committee’s amendment, was forwarded and preliminarily reviewed by the Attorney General’s 
Office and appeared to be in an acceptable form. The modifications to that proposal appear 
minor and it would be our belief that the amended proposal will most likely meet approval. The 
proposed ballot wording is currently at the maximum 100 word limitation. 
 
The Charter Revision Committee recommends to City Council the attached  proposed Charter 
language and ballot question for submittal to the Troy voters at the November 6, 2005 City 
General Election.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Troy City Council approve the proposed resolution to place a question on 

the November 6, 2007 General City Election.  
 
 
 
  



PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT (WITH TRACK CHANGES): 
 
Section 6.2 - Vacancies in Elective Office: 
Any elective city office shall be declared vacant by the Council upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events before the expiration of the term of such office: 
 
STRIKE 
 
(g) Any City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective office, except to 

succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing deadline of the municipal election. 
 
INSERT 
 
(g) Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a 

petition for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council 
position at least 21 days before filing for municipal election. 

 
PROPOSED BALLOT WORDING: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN 
ELECTIVE OFFICE 

Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, be amended  to allow 
members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office (other 
than their own) without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its 
entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next municipal 
election, filing a petition for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their 
current Council position at least 21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 

YES ___ NO ___ 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Tuesday, July 31, 2007, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. In the absence of Chairman Bliss, Vice-Chairman 
Bloom called the Meeting to order at 3:36 PM. 

 
ROLL CALL:   
 PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Jerry E. Bloom, David Eisenbacher, Shirley 

Kanoza, Mark Solomon, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Daniel Bliss,  

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Bluhm, City Clerk Bartholomew and Deputy 
City Clerk Pallotta 

 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBER: Daniel Bliss 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-006 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Dan Bliss be EXCUSED from the meeting of July 31, 2007.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBERS: Daniel Bliss and Mark Solomon 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-007 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Dan Bliss and Mark Solomon be EXCUSED from the meeting of June 
15, 2007.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Friday, June 15, 2007 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-008 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Friday, June 15, 2007 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 

-2- 

 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-009 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS an 
amendment to Section 6.2(g) of the City Charter proposed as follows: 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in elective 
office, be amended to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at 
the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their own without 
resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current Section 6.2(g) in 
its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not 
expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective 
office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from their current Council 
position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
It was the consensus of the committee to revise the motion to allow for the resignation of a 
council member to occur 21 days prior to the date of filing. This revision was requested to 
allow ample time for interested candidate to file for the vacant position prior to the filing 
deadline. It was noted that the Clerk’s office publishes a notice of the filing deadline, 
including the number of potential positions, 15 days prior to the filing deadline. This 
modification would allow for the vacant position to be included in the notice publication. 
 
AMENDMENT TO PROPOSED MOTION 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-009 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Kanoza 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 

-3- 

 
RESOLVED, That the motion be AMENDED BY SUBSTITUTION the following ballot 
language for the proposed ballot language in its entirety: 
 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, 
be amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the 
next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without 
resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its 
entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring 
at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, 
except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 
21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

VOTE ON AMENDED MAIN MOTION: 
 
SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-010 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS an 
amendment to Section 6.2(g) of the City Charter proposed as follows: 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, 
be amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the 
next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 

-4- 

resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its 
entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring 
at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, 
except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 
21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-011 
Moved by Barno 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Tuesday, July 31, 2007 be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Vice-Chair Bloom ADJOURNED the meeting at 4:18 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jerry E. Bloom, Vice-Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



TO: Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 31, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance 
 

 

This proposed ordinance was drafted in response to concerns initially voiced by 
the Troy Community Coalition that minors were unlawfully being served tobacco at 
hookah cafes in the City of Troy.  The attached proposed ordinance would require 
smoking lounges, including hookah cafes, operating in the City of Troy to obtain a 
license. The proposed ordinance would provide some preventative safeguards to 
address the unlawful use of tobacco by minors. It was presented at the last regular City 
Council meeting as an informational item, and after some revisions to the definitional 
section at the direction of City Council, it is now being presented as an action item.   

 
At the request of members of Council at the last meeting, we have modified the 

definition of a smoking lounge.  There was a concern about the possible message that 
was being conveyed by the use of the word “promote” in the definitional section of the 
proposed ordinance.  In response, this proposal removes the word “promote,” and 
instead uses the phrase “dedicated to,” so that the definition of smoking lounge applies 
to those establishments that as one of its principal business purposes, is dedicated to 
the smoking of tobacco and other legal substances on the premises. Also at the request 
of City Council, the definition of “principal business purpose” has been expanded to 
include establishments that rent or furnish smoking paraphernalia to be used at the 
establishment.  

 
The remaining sections of the ordinance are the same as presented at the last 

Council meeting.   The proposed ordinance requires a prospective smoking lounge operator 
to be subjected to an investigation and background check by City staff, which is designed to 
screen the proposed operators of these types of businesses.  If the proposed operators or 
the proposed location do not meet the City’s criteria for a Smoking Lounge License, then the 
City can deny a license application.   For example, a person who was convicted of furnishing 
tobacco or alcohol to a minor may be denied a smoking lounge license, and a license may be 
denied when the premises is in violation of the zoning or building ordinances.  

 
Violation of the provisions of this ordinance would be a misdemeanor, punishable by 

up to 90 days in jail and /or a fine of up to $500.  This includes the operation of a smoking 
lounge without a license. 

 
The proposed ordinance, and the corresponding necessary amendments to 

Chapters 3 and 60 are attached for your review and consideration.  If you have any 
questions concerning the above, please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADD A NEW CHAPTER TO THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY WHICH CHAPTER SHALL BE 
DESIGNATED AS CHAPTER 77 

 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 77, Smoking Lounges, 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Adoption of Article VII, Chapter 77 
 
Chapter 77 of the Code of the City of Troy, to provide for the licensing of smoking 
lounges, to provide for definitions of smoking lounges, to provide for application 
for a license, to provide for specific requirements and conditions for smoking 
lounges and to provide for a penalty for violation thereof, is hereby adopted as 
set forth below: 
 
Section 3. Smoking Lounge Ordinance 

 
1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Chapter.  
 

a. “Smoking Lounge” means an establishment, which, as one of its 
principal business purposes, is dedicated to the smoking of tobacco 
products or other legal substances on its premises. The term 
“Smoking Lounge” includes, but is not limited to: cigar lounges, 
hookah cafés, tobacco lounges, tobacco clubs or tobacco bars. 

 
b. “Principal Business Purpose” means: 

 
i. The dedication of more than 50 percent of its interior floor 

space for the smoking of tobacco products or other legal 
substances at the establishment; or 

 
ii. The receipt of more than 35 percent of its revenues from one 

or both of the following: 
 

1.  The smoking of tobacco products or other legal 
substances to be consumed at the establishment or; 

  
2. The renting or furnishing of smoking paraphernalia 

including but no limited to: rolling papers, pipes, 
hookahs or narghiles to be used at the establishment. 



 
iii. The dedication of more than 35 percent of its advertising 

expenditures to the advertising of smoking tobacco products 
or other legal substances at the establishment. 

 
 

c. “Tobacco Products” mean cigars, cigarettes, or non-cigarette 
smoking tobacco. 

 
d. “Other Legal Substances” include clove cigarettes, kreteks, herbal 

cigarettes, and any other legal substance that can be consumed by 
smoking.  

 
2. License Required 

 
No person shall operate a Smoking Lounge in the City of Troy without first 
obtaining a smoking lounge license issued pursuant to the provisions of this 
Chapter. 
 

3. Application for Smoking Lounge License 
 

a. An applicant shall submit to the City Clerk a fully completed 
application, on a form that is prepared and furnished by the City 
Clerk. 

 
b. The application shall include at least the following information: 

 
i. The full and complete name and current address of the 

applicant(s). 
  

1. If the applicant is a partnership, the name and 
address of each partner shall be listed, and a copy of 
any partnership agreement shall be attached to the 
application. 

  
2. If the applicant is a privately held corporation, the 

name and address of each corporate officer, member 
of board of directors, and stockholder shall be listed, 
and a copy of the articles of incorporation shall be 
attached to the application.  

 
3. If the applicant is a publicly held corporation, the 

name and address of each corporate officer, each 
member of the board of directors and each 
stockholder who owns ten (10) percent or more of the 
corporate stock shall be listed on the application. 



 
4. If the applicant is a limited liability company, the name 

and address of each member, manager and assignee 
of a membership interest shall be listed, and the 
articles of organization shall be attached to the 
application. 

 
ii. The complete name, address, and telephone number of the 

proposed licensed business; 
 

iii. Written statement as to the applicant’s experience in 
operating similar businesses; 

 
iv. A concise statement as to the individual applicant’s past 

employment; 
 

v. Any other information pertinent to the applicant and the 
operation of the proposed licensed business. 

 
c. An applicant shall attach to the completed application a floor plan, 

drawn to scale, showing the interior of the proposed business, and 
uses of the proposed spaces.  

 
4.  Licensing  

 
Smoking Lounge Licenses shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 59 of this 
Code.  
 

5. License Fees 
 

The fee for a Smoking Lounge License shall be as specified in Chapter 60 of this 
Code. 

 
6. Investigation 
 

a. After the City Clerk has received a completed application, it shall 
be, at a minimum, forwarded to the following City Departments for 
review and investigation: 

 
i. Police 
 

ii. Fire 
 

iii. Building Inspection 
 



b. During City business hours or at another mutually agreeable time, 
the applicant shall allow the representatives of the above 
referenced City Departments onto the property and into the 
proposed licensed premises to complete an investigation. 

 
c. If all of the above listed City Departments approve the application, 

and it conforms to the provisions of this Chapter, the City Clerk 
shall issue a Smoking Lounge License to the applicant.  

 
7. Reasons for Denial 
 

a. Requirements for Applicants.   A license may be denied as a result 
of one or more of the following factors:  

 
i. An individual applicant, who has previously received a 

Smoking Lounge License, has had the license revoked for 
cause, as defined in Chapter 59 of this Code. 

 
ii. If the applicant is a co-partnership, and any of the members 

of the co-partnership fail to qualify to obtain a Smoking 
Lounge License.   

 
iii. A corporation if any officer, manager or director or a stock 

owner or stockholders owning in the aggregate more than 
ten (10) percent of the stock of such corporation, would not 
be eligible to receive a license or related permit hereunder 
for any reason. 

 
iv. If the applicant proposes to hire a manager or agent to 

handle the business operations, and the proposed manager 
or agent does not possesses the same qualifications as 
those required of the licensee. 

 
v. If any of the individuals who are required to be identified on 

the application, as set forth in section 3 above, have been 
convicted or found responsible for a violation of any federal, 
state, or local law involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, 
fraud, violence, controlled substances, the sale, distribution, 
or furnishing of tobacco, or the sale, distribution, or 
furnishing of alcoholic liquors. 

 
vi. If an applicant does not own the premises for which a 

Smoking Lounge License is sought or does not have a lease 
or other right of exclusive possession of the premises 
proposed for the business for the full period for which the 
license is issued. 



 
b. Requirement for the Proposed Licensed Premises.  Smoking 

Lounge License shall not be issued if there are any violation(s) of 
the applicable building, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, or fire 
prevention codes, applicable zoning regulations, or applicable 
public health regulations, unless such violation can be remedied 
within a stated period of time as determined by the Fire Department 
or Building Department.   

 
c. Location. No license shall be issued to a business located within 

500 feet (500’), from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line, on a 
straight-line basis, of a school. 

  
8. Display of Smoking Lounge License 

 
A Smoking Lounge License issued pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter 
shall be prominently displayed near the entrance of the licensed premises. 

 
9. Revocation and Suspension of a License 

 
The City Manager, or his or her designee, may immediately revoke or suspend a 
Smoking Lounge License, upon the applicant’s violation of any provisions of this 
Ordinance or for other good cause.  The procedure for the suspension and 
revocation of the license shall be governed by the provisions of Chapter 59 of 
this Code.  

 
10. Violations and Penalties 

 
Any person, firm or corporation convicted of violating any provision of this 
Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed 
$500 and/or 90 days in jail, as well as the penalties provided herein.  
 
Section 4. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 



effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 6. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is hereby amended to provide that a City of Troy Building 
Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve appearance tickets to Smoking 
Lounges if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 
committed a violation of Chapter 77. 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is amended by the addition of the following: 
 

Section 1.141 (6)   A City of Troy Building Inspector shall have authority to 
issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 
Infraction notice of violation and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code. 
 
Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges              

 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This Ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
      City Clerk 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fee:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Smoking Lounges  
 
Annual License Fee     $100.00 
 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 



 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

July 30, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager /Finance and Administration  
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gertrude Paraskevin, IT Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services  
 
Background 
 The City has been utilizing the state contract to convert paper documents to both digital and 

microfilm formats for many years.   
 The most recent provider of optical scanning services – statewide – under the State of Michigan 

MiDEAL Program is Graphic Sciences.  They have been working with various departments to 
convert documents as part of our document imaging project, as well as providing microfilm for 
long-term backup storage.  We have been very pleased with the results so far.    

 Unfortunately, the contract with the State expired January 31, 2006.  The State had planned to 
rebid the contract when the existing one expired; however, this has been delayed and is just now 
out for bid.  Final award of a new contract is expected later this year.  

 Since the expiration of the contract, Graphic Sciences has continued to provide services to the 
State under the same terms and conditions.  They also continue to offer local governments the 
same contract pricing. 

 No other cooperative contract exists that includes all needed services. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are budgeted in various departmental accounts for these services.  

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government by utilizing 

cooperative contracts.  (Goal II) 
 Digital format expands the electronic function and allows for more efficient use of time when 

accessing information.  (Goal II) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



Page 2 of 2 

July 30, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Wavier – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services 
 
 
 Enhance the flow of communication internally by providing easy access to information to City 

employees. (Goal IV) 
 
Options 
 
 City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and authorization to utilize 

Graphic Sciences for digital conversion and microfilm services under the same pricing, terms and 
conditions as dictated by the original agreement with the State of Michigan, until a new contract is 
awarded by the State.  

 
 In addition, staff requests confirmation for the cost of services rendered over the administrative 

limit made for digital conversion and microfilm services in the police department at a total cost of 
$20,000.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











campbellld
Text Box
F-08







 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Chief Charles Craft 
    Captain Gary Mayer 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
 
SUBJECT:   Application for Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan. 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Kroger Co of Michigan request transfer ownership 2007 SDM licensed business located at 1237 N. 

Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc. {MLCC req #421565} 
 On July 24, 2007, Chris Rodgers of Kroger Co., answered question for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 Mr. Rodgers indicated the business would operate in the same manner as the existing Kroger store in Troy.  
 The Liquor Advisory Committee approved this request by a 3-2 vote.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations for the city. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 City Council approval is required for the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to approve the transfer. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City goal III: “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment”. 

 
Options: 
 The City Council can approve or deny the transfer. 

 
 
 
C: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk agreement (original) 































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing  

Request for outdoor seating area in excess of 20 seats 
Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address) 

 
 
 
Background:  We have received an application from Don Waller, representing Mitchell’s Ocean Club 
Restaurant, for approval for an outdoor seating area for 80 seats as part of the construction of a new 
restaurant at the southwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Coolidge.  This property is in the O-S-C 
(Office Service Commercial) Zoning District.  Section 26.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance allows 
outdoor seating in conjunction with restaurant uses in the O-S-C district subject to Special Use 
Approval before City Council (in place of the Planning Commission).  A public hearing is scheduled 
for your meeting of August 20, 2007. 
 
  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations regarding this matter. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 A properly noticed public hearing for a special use approval is required by the Troy Zoning 

Ordinance and the State of Michigan Municipal Planning Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the Community (Goal I) 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal III). 

 
Options: 
 
 There are no options at this time. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a













       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items:  
G-2 No Memorandums  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a















campbellld
Text Box
J-01b

























CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 15, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Friday, June 15, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. In the absence of Chairman Bliss, City Clerk Bartholomew 
called the Meeting to order at 7:33 AM. 

 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Jerry E. Bloom, David 

Eisenbacher, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Daniel Bliss, Mark Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Nelson, City Attorney Bluhm, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration Lamerato, and City 
Clerk Bartholomew 

 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE AGENDA TO INCLUDE APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0001 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be AMENDED to include the Appointment of a Vice-Chair.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0002 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Jerry Bloom be APPOINTED as Vice-Chair of the Charter Revision 
Advisory Committee.  
 
Yes: Barno, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: Bloom  
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, July 25, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-003 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, July 25, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 15, 2007 
 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 4.6 AND 6.2 (E) – EXCUSED ABSENCES OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-004 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS no proposed 
language amendments to the Charter of the City of Troy to be forwarded to the Council for 
placement on the November 2007 Ballot at this time and if a need arises the item to be 
readdressed in the future. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0005 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Friday, June 15, 2007 be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Vice-Chair Bloom ADJOURNED the meeting at 7:48 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jerry E. Bloom, Vice-Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-2- 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held 
Tuesday, May 22, 2007 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to 
order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Sandy Macknis 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Mike Gonda 
    Alison Miller 
    Jim Hattan 
    Bob Preston 
    Jeff Super 
    Dan O’Brien 
    Sarah Wunderlich, Student Representative 

 
Members Absent:  Bob Berk 
 
City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 

Bob  Matlick 
    Gerry Scherlinck 
    Jeff Biegler 
 

Guests:   Doris Schuchter 
    Kelly Jones 
    Tom Tighe 
    Karen Hattan 
    Diana McKay 
    Tom Duszynski 
    Poncho Massaini 

     
     
 
 

 
Excuse Members Absent 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-06-26 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Bob Preston 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 

 

Resolved, that Bob Berk is excused. 
      MOTION CARRIED 

 
Additions/Deletions to Agenda 

 
None 
  

 
Approval of Minutes 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-06-27 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of May 22, 2007 are approved as submitted. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

New Business 
 
a. Financial Report handed out to the Advisory Committee with Troy Daze 

budget info January 2006—May 2007. Any questions, email Cindy Stewart 
and she will forward to John Lamerato.  If necessary he will come to an 
upcoming meeting to answer questions. 

 
b. 2007 Shirt Color. 2006 was jade. Shirt is worn at the July 24 meeting for 

photo.    2007 shirt color ideas: California Blue suggested. 
 

RESOLUTION #TD-06-28 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Jim Hattan 
Motion to order California Blue golf shirts for members and chairs of the 
committee, and California Blue t-shirts for adult volunteers.  
MOTION CARRIED 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-06-29 
Moved by Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by Alison Miller 
Motion to order kiwi green t-shirts for student volunteers.  
MOTION CARRIED 

 
a. Senior Sensation Chair: Carla Vaughn, Senior Coordinator will help us find 

a chair. 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 

 

 
Old Business 
 

a. Contract Updates. Various contracts are out and waiting for returns. 
Council approved fireworks at the June 18th meeting. 

 
 
b. Committee Reports:  

Entertainment (Jeff Stewart): Completely booked and contracts in. 
Special needs: Cakes, pizza donated. 
 
Student Volunteers (Sandy Macknis): We will need approx. 300 student 
volunteers for all days and activities. Need 300 small layout maps for 
students. 
 
Car Show (Allison Miller): Car show set for 20 cars in front area of the 
parking lot. 
  
Magic Cauldron: no idea what prizes are left from 2006. Can someone 
check trailer? Mike will coordinate this in the upcoming months. 
 
Cutest Toddler: All set. 
 
50/50 Raffle (Tom Tighe): As of 2007, Knights and Columbus will not be 
sponsoring 50/50 raffle. The Knights of Columbus Council is disbanding. 
Perhaps another group would like to take this over. 
 
Fire Department (Bob Mattick): Fireworks approved by City Council. Fire 
and Police Departments will need 12 layout maps. 
 
Petting Zoo (Bob Preston): Still no contacts. Will check MFEA. 
 
Parade (Diana McKay): Needs a roll of raffle tickets. Would like Miss Troy 
winners from 2007 to be in the parade as well as 2006 Cutest Toddler and 
Infant. They also would like the EthniCity flags for the parade. Still looking 
for float entries. Some nominations are coming in for Grand Marshall. 
Parade Announcements re: raffle prizes will be 11 a.m. on the Outdoor 
Stage. 
 
EthniCity (Kelly Jones): Working on filling the tent with booths. To date: 
Finland, Pakistan, Philippines and Poland applications have been sent in. 
 
Photo Contest (Tom Duszynski): Need award ribbons for 1st, 2nd, 3rd 
places, youth and adult and 50 Honorable Mentions without a year. Steve 
Wassef will be volunteering with Tom and Tammy. On Saturday, Bill 
Cowger will be taking photos with high school students and publish them 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 

 

online, able to download. Also thanks to Bill Cowger for donating his time. 
Is it ok to have people order portraits off his website? 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-06-30 
Moved by Dan O’Brien 
Seconded by Bob Preston 
Motion to have Bill Cowger, Acacia Photography link and photos available 
for people to download and purchase additional photos and portraits. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Police (Gerry Scherlinck): Explorers get a percentage of gate sales.  They 
are concerned that presales will hurt them. Will they still get 10% of the 
money collected from parking? Board said yes.  
Suggestion to move student drop off at Boulan Park. Explorers will staff 
and run this area; it is safer and well lit. Reminder that Troy Daze does 
have to cover the OT for Police for the parade. (Approx. $2000.) 
 
Operations (Mike Gonda): In July or August, Operations Committee will do 
an inventory of the Troy Daze trailer. Mike has been working with the 
City’s Engineering Department in regards to maps. Exact dimensions are 
being added for all tents, areas, etc. It will be very accurate. Snow fence 
and parking—should Operations meet with the Police or DPW? It should 
be close to last year’s, plus plan for snow fence near park entrance to 
enclose residences near to park. (Crooks and park entrance.)  
 
Double the order of caution tape. Wooden and metal stakes needed from 
DPW. 
 
 Jeff Super will plot the large 20x30 foot signs. Cindy can send info to Jeff 
Super, re: signage, entertainment, tent hours, etc. 
 
Big tent layouts on Friday, September 7. Rest of tent layouts on Sunday, 
September  9. Set up Monday, September 10.  
 
Booth Vendor meeting at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, September 5 at the 
Community Center.  
 
Collection of money—City of Troy spoke with the former City Treasurer 
and she volunteered to count the money, record and deposit money with a 
police escort. Money will be counted in the police trailer.  
 
Parking stickers will be sold starting August 1st at the Community Center. 
 
 Sponsors (Cindy Stewart): To date MSGCU, Wide Open West, National 
City, Tringali, Henry Ford Hospital, ITC Transmission, Comcast.  Check 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 

 

into getting MSGCU the correct size sign (3x8). Press releases will be 
sent out for all events. 

 
  

Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-06-31 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Jim Hattan 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee meeting of June 26, 2007 
is adjourned. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:32 pm. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Mike Gonda, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 

 
 
 
REMINDER: Next meeting – July 24, 2007 at 7:00 PM 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft July 10, 2007 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Tuesday, July 10, 2007, at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman McGinnis 
called the meeting to order at 7:40 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty (Absent) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 
Administration 
Charles Craft, Police Chief 

 Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 Gary Mayer, Police Captain 

Ed Murphy, Police Captain 
Sergeant Robert Redmond, TCOA President 
Monica Irelan, Intern, City Manager‟s Office  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
a.  Approval of Minutes of Wednesday, June 7, 2007  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-07-013 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Thursday, June 7, 2007 as presented. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Cannon 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
a.  Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Deputy Police Chief 
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director explained that due to a restructuring of the Police 
Department, a new position, Deputy Police Chief, is being created and will report directly to 
the Police Chief. 
 
Commissioner Cannon asked for further explanation regarding the salary range as described 
in the job announcement, specifically the phrase “with growth opportunities up to …” 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft July 10, 2007 
 

-2- 

Ms. Sears responded that the pay scale is a broad range and the person hired generally 
would move to the midpoint range after 5 years of service. She explained that they did not 
want to mislead applicants into believing that they could be hired at the maximum of the 
range. 
 
Captain Murphy raised an issue in regard to the educational portion of the job posting. He 
explained that only one of the three candidates currently holds a Masters Degree and he is 
concerned about that candidate having an unfair advantage. He indicated that the last posting 
for Police Chief did not include such a requirement. 
 
Ms. Sears replied that the Human Resources Department proposed the minimum 
requirements for the job posting and added that applicant qualifications are not considered 
when the requirements are set. She added that the city has not recruited for the Police Chief 
position in 10 years and that as job responsibilities change over time so do the minimum 
requirements; it is likely that these degree requirements would be added to the requirements 
for the next Police Chief testing. 
 
Ms. Sears noted that a Masters Degree is not a minimum requirement; it is preferred but not 
required. 
 
Commissioner Cannon asked whether they have the authority to quantify the weight a 
Masters Degree would hold. He is concerned that it may be too late in the career of the 
candidates to achieve this requirement and added that although other credentials will be 
considered that the weight of possessing a Masters Degree may be the deciding factor at this 
point. 
 
Ms. Sears replied that applicants are considered based on all factors such as recent job 
performance as well as whether they have the „preferred‟ qualifications. She explained that a 
Masters Degree may not be given any consideration depending upon the candidate‟s other 
considerations (poor recent performance for example). 
 
Commissioner Cannon would like to know how much weight a Masters Degree would carry 
before approving the qualifications, posting and test battery for the Deputy Police Chief 
position. 
 
Chief Craft suggested that it could be made clear that the Masters Degree will not be a part of 
the Assessment Center evaluation conducted by EMPCO, Inc. 
 
Chairman McGinnis suggested that they add, “but not necessary for consideration for the 
position” to the posting language. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft July 10, 2007 
 

-3- 

Resolution #CSC-2007-07-014 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Deputy Police Chief as 
PRESENTED with the caveat that following modifications: The fourth requirement, as listed 
under the Requirements (Promotional Applicants) shall be substituted with the following: 
 

1. “Bachelors Degree in law enforcement or a related field and a Masters 
Degree in Public Administration or a related field are preferred BUT NOT 
NECESSARY FOR CONSIDERATION OF THE POSITION.” 

 
2. For this assessment cycle, a Masters Degree shall not be independently 

and exclusively considered as an assessment factor in the EMPCO, Inc. 
assessment rating. 

 
Yes: McGinnis, Cannon 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
OLD BUSINESS: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:19 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 6:00 p.m. on July 10, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Thomas Strat (arrived 6:07 p.m.) 
Mary Kerwin  Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
John K. Abraham, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-112 
Moved by: Littman  
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 6:07 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #9) – Project Update – Proposed The 
Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, Northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial), O-M 
(Office Mid-rise) and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller briefly described the project and introduced the applicant. 
 
Hunter Richardson, Richardson Development Group, the applicant, provided a brief 
description of the process to date. 
 
Richard Carlsile, Carlsile/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, 
summarized his review of the project. 
 
Hunter Richardson addressed Mr. Carlisle’s comments.  He will respond to issues 
raised in the review in future submissions, probably within two weeks.  The 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

development team has met with approximately 50 residential neighbors and got 
significant feedback.  Two future meetings are planned with the neighbors. 
 
Planning Commissioners commented on the project. 
 
Mr. Hutson commented on the following: 

o Phase 1 buildings on the east side of the development will be visible 
from Coolidge.  Reduce or eliminate vehicular traffic on the interior 
loop road.   

o Some unnecessary text provided in binder. 
o Consider permeability on site. 
o Encourage innovative storm water techniques.  

 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Abraham could comment on traffic. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated he is meeting with the applicant’s traffic consultant tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Schultz invited Mr. Abraham to attend a future meeting. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked if reports would be available regularly throughout the process. 
 
Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated she appreciated the information contained in the narrative. 
 
Ms. Troshynski requested to see building materials. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how Traffic Engineers looked at a development on a road with a 
Level of Service that is already at F. 
 
Mr. Abraham responded that there are other factors you can measure such as 
average rate of speed and delay. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated that this meeting was a great start to the process.  He supported 
the interior traffic patterns.  He stated a hotel on the corner would help to make 
Phase 1 more aesthetically pleasing and add to the Big Beaver Corridor. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the applicant on the project. 
 
Mr. Tagle requested that the applicant specifically address the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study, and also think about how this project could help carry the Key Concepts to 
the east. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the Key Concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study be applied 
to both Big Beaver and Coolidge.  He was concerned with the treatment of the 
corner and would like to see a strong relationship between the street and the 
buildings or landscaping.  Innovative treatments such as parallel parking may assist 
in this. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if any audience members wished to comment. 
 
No audience members indicated they wanted to comment. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Hunter Richardson requested that if the Planning Commission wished to address a 
specific item, they should provide notice to the applicant to that appropriate experts 
from the development team would be in attendance to address that specific issue. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\07-10-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 6:00 p.m. on July 10, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Thomas Strat (arrived 6:07 p.m.) 
Mary Kerwin  Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
John K. Abraham, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-112 
Moved by: Littman  
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 6:07 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #9) – Project Update – Proposed The 
Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, Northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial), O-M 
(Office Mid-rise) and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller briefly described the project and introduced the applicant. 
 
Hunter Richardson, Richardson Development Group, the applicant, provided a brief 
description of the process to date. 
 
Richard Carlsile, Carlsile/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, 
summarized his review of the project. 
 
Hunter Richardson addressed Mr. Carlisle’s comments.  He will respond to issues 
raised in the review in future submissions, probably within two weeks.  The 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

development team has met with approximately 50 residential neighbors and got 
significant feedback.  Two future meetings are planned with the neighbors. 
 
Planning Commissioners commented on the project. 
 
Mr. Hutson commented on the following: 

o Phase 1 buildings on the east side of the development will be visible 
from Coolidge.  Reduce or eliminate vehicular traffic on the interior 
loop road.   

o Some unnecessary text provided in binder. 
o Consider permeability on site. 
o Encourage innovative storm water techniques.  

 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Abraham could comment on traffic. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated he is meeting with the applicant’s traffic consultant tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Schultz invited Mr. Abraham to attend a future meeting. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked if reports would be available regularly throughout the process. 
 
Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated she appreciated the information contained in the narrative. 
 
Ms. Troshynski requested to see building materials. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how Traffic Engineers looked at a development on a road with a 
Level of Service that is already at F. 
 
Mr. Abraham responded that there are other factors you can measure such as 
average rate of speed and delay. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated that this meeting was a great start to the process.  He supported 
the interior traffic patterns.  He stated a hotel on the corner would help to make 
Phase 1 more aesthetically pleasing and add to the Big Beaver Corridor. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the applicant on the project. 
 
Mr. Tagle requested that the applicant specifically address the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study, and also think about how this project could help carry the Key Concepts to 
the east. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the Key Concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study be applied 
to both Big Beaver and Coolidge.  He was concerned with the treatment of the 
corner and would like to see a strong relationship between the street and the 
buildings or landscaping.  Innovative treatments such as parallel parking may assist 
in this. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if any audience members wished to comment. 
 
No audience members indicated they wanted to comment. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Hunter Richardson requested that if the Planning Commission wished to address a 
specific item, they should provide notice to the applicant to that appropriate experts 
from the development team would be in attendance to address that specific issue. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\07-10-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 10, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-113 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was requested by Chair Schultz and the Planning Department staff to add the Troy 
Master Plan Progress Report to the Agenda, as item 4.b. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-114 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To add Agenda item 4.b., Troy Master Plan Progress Report. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-115 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 26, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4.b. TROY MASTER PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates reviewed the Smart Growth 
Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) and Master Plan update.  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, West 
side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 3 – From 
R-1 B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that although the application is not consistent 
with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan, it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.  He reported that the request is 
consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses.  Mr. Miller indicated it is bad planning to leave the 
single family residential parcel to the north, but noted the Planning Commission 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

conducted themselves reasonably by requesting the petitioner to assemble that 
piece of property.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked what would be required of the petitioner to bring the property in 
compliance with the O-1 office zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner would be required to go through site plan approval 
because the office use has not been approved for that site.  
 
Mr. Vleck addressed site improvements that would be required in relation to quality 
and long-term development.  Mr. Vleck asked if the City could initiate a rezoning on 
the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed the City could initiate a rezoning for any property.  She 
indicated City Council could rezone the parcel by going through the appropriate 
approval process.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the existing property owner would be allowed to continue as 
residential.   
 
Mr. Miller said the use would be allowed to continue and the property would be 
considered a true nonconforming use.  He noted the site would lose its 
nonconforming status should it be abandoned as a single family use.  Mr. Miller said 
the greater issue for the property to the north is that it would be very unlikely that it 
could be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the subject property could continue its operation as it exists, 
without site improvements, should it be rezoned to O-1.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that technically the use has not been approved for the subject 
property and is not permitted in that zoning district.  He said the owner would have 
to show good faith in moving forward with site plan approval to have an office at that 
location. 
 
The owner, Robin Siegel of 283 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Siegel addressed the existing screening to the west along the residential area.   
 
Chair Schultz explained different screening requirements would have to be met 
should the site be zoned office.  He informed the petitioner that should the rezoning 
go forward, the site would have to be redeveloped as an office and go through the 
site plan approval process. 
 
Ms. Siegel said they would be more than happy to do that and would make every 
effort to fully comply with all zoning ordinance requirements.  She confirmed that the 
site is currently being used as office only.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on the screen wall requirements for O-1 zoning.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not 100% comfortable with the proposed rezoning.  He 
addressed the petitioner’s attempt to consolidate the property to the north, the cost 
involved for site improvements that would be required for office, its relation to the 
Rochester Road corridor, and the developable status of the residential property to 
the north.  Mr. Vleck said a conditional rezoning might be a favorable option. 
 
Mr. Littman addressed the small size of the subject parcel should it be developed as 
office.  He said it might very well be a problem for both the petitioner and the City.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the property to the north would be less developable and less 
desirable should the subject property be rezoned and the required screen wall is in 
place.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked if a screen wall is required between the property to the south 
[Binson’s] and the subject property.   
 
Mr. Miller replied a screen wall is required unless the property to the south 
[Binson’s] receives a waiver from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see a potential conditional rezoning application 
submitted on the subject property to see how it might be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would consider the rezoning request further if there was some 
collaboration between Binson’s and the subject property for a cross access 
easement.   
 
Messrs. Hutson and Littman addressed the option of a conditional rezoning 
application. 
 
Mr. Strat said he would not support the rezoning request because there is potential 
the existing house could become a legal nonconforming use automatically.  He said 
the property to the north would remain an orphan parcel until the owner decides to 
sell or consolidate.  Mr. Strat said he would be supportive of a conditional rezoning 
should the petitioner be willing. 
 
Mr. Vleck said his preference would be for the City to initiate a rezoning request for 
the property to the north.  He questioned the time frame for the City to initiate such 
a request.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller said public hearings could be scheduled next month for both the Planning 
Commission and City Council, should the Planning Commission make a resolution 
tonight to initiate a rezoning.   
 
Ms. Troshynski indicated she would not be in favor of the general rezoning request 
because of its affect on the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Littman said, as a policy, he is not in favor of City initiated rezoning requests 
especially in cases where the owner is not in support.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-116 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, due to problems in how the site might develop.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not necessarily in favor of the rezoning request, but he would 
like to see the petitioner pursue other options to develop the property.  He said 
there could be potential for a desirable development if the petitioner collaborates 
with the Binson’s development.  Mr. Vleck addressed his position for a City-initiated 
rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would have preferred a motion to postpone.  She indicated she 
might have voted in favor of denial if the motion had stipulated denial was based on 
non-compliance with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  He indicated to the petitioner that the Planning Department 
would be the resource on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the procedure for City-initiated rezoning requests.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 199-B) – Proposed Retail 
Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Square Lake (43109 Dequindre 
Road), Section 1 – From R-1D (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
deny the rezoning application.  Mr. Miller said the request is inconsistent with the 
Future Land Use Plan.  He noted the application states they want to combine with 
the subject piece of property, but there is no legal documentation indicating that 
would occur, or no ability to insure that would happen with submission of a general 
rezoning request.  
 
The petitioner, Steve Haisha of LBC Property Investments, 154 S. Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Haisha agrees that it would be optimal to collaborate 
the development of both the corner parcel and the subject property.  He said both 
parcels of property are under contract to purchase and offered to provide 
documentation to such, as he did also at the time of the application submission.  Mr. 
Haisha offered to submit site plans for the subject parcel alone and the two parcels 
combined.  
 
There was a brief discussion on the City’s policy whether consideration can be 
given to a site plan that is submitted concurrently with a rezoning request.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed it is City policy to not give consideration to site plans at the 
time a rezoning request is considered.  She indicated the Future Land Use Plan as 
well as the uses of surrounding areas should be considered for a rezoning request 
because a rezoning runs with the land and anything that is eligible to be placed on 
that once it is rezoned can be placed on it no matter what the petitioner says. 
 
Mr. Strat said the petitioner should have considered the parcel combination 
simultaneously or at least provided proof of ownership of both properties.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the required screening between the B-1 zoning and the 
residential, of which five houses directly abut the subject property.  He said 
regardless if one property or both properties are developed, he would not support 
the rezoning request because of its affects on the surrounding residential 
properties.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would not support the rezoning request as presented tonight, 
but would welcome a conditional rezoning on the subject parcel.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner for clarification on the options to purchase, or 
ownership, of the parcels.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Haisha replied that he has under contract an option to purchase both properties.  
He indicated the owners of both properties are present at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. 
Haisha said he was informed by the Planning Department that signatures of the 
property owners on the rezoning application were sufficient, and that documentation 
relating to purchase options was not required at the time of submission.  He 
indicated he would be happy to receive a conditional approval tonight, or postpone 
the item until appropriate documentation is submitted.  Mr. Haisha has not met with 
the neighbors, to date, but indicated he would work with the neighbors and provide 
additional screening above and beyond zoning ordinance requirements.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Thomas Dombrowski of 2900 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dombrowski 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed concerns 
relating to health, safety, home values and aesthetics.  Mr. Dombrowski offered to 
submit copies of a protest petition in opposition of the rezoning request.  He said the 
original protest petition would be submitted to City Council prior to their meeting and 
public hearing on the request.  Mr. Dombrowski clarified that he is not an official 
representative of the homeowners association, but is the contact person on the 
protest petition.   
 
Prabhakar Vallury of 2878 Briarwood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Vallury spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request, and indicated agreement with 
comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Ritika Undemane of 2892 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Undemane 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed concern for 
the small children in the neighborhood, and indicated agreement with comments 
given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Ramesh Subramoniam of 2916 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Subramoniam spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed 
the potential negative impacts a business would have on the subdivision, and 
indicated agreement with comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Branka Lei of 2936 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Lei spoke in opposition 
of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the history of the subdivision and 
layout of the homes as relates to the proposed request.   
 
Robert Cantlon of 2864 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Cantlon spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the six homes that 
would be directly affected by the proposed rezoning.  He said it was understood by 
the homeowners at the time they purchased their homes that the subject parcel 
would be residential.   
 
Lisa Havlish of 2875 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Havlish, secretary to 
the homeowners association, supports the comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Nihaia Savaya of 2924 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Savaya, whose 
property directly abuts the subject property, spoke in opposition of the proposed 
rezoning.  She supports the comments given by Mr. Dombrowski and indicated she 
signed the protest petition.   
 
Paula Mather of 2908 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Mather spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  She addressed concerns relating to traffic, 
safety and home values.  Ms. Mather said it was understood at the time they 
purchased their home that the subject property would be residential.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz stated that property owners have the legal right to request a rezoning 
at any time, and the City must go through the mechanism to review the request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-117 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council denial of the rezoning request from R-1D to B-1, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Square Lake, within Section 1, being approximately 0.810 acres 
in size, because it does not comply with the Future Land use Plan and would have 
negative affects on the neighboring properties.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck 
No: Hutson, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat said he would like to see the petitioner have an opportunity to consolidate 
the properties.   
 
Mr. Hutson said he would like to see a conditional rezoning and consolidation of the 
properties.  He thinks the fears expressed by the neighbors tonight might be allayed 
with a conditional rezoning.   
 
Chair Schultz echoed the comments of Messrs. Strat and Hutson.   
 
There was a brief discussion on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 352) – Proposed Self Storage 
Facility, South side of Maple, East of Axtell Road (2545 W. Maple), Section 32, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Joseph Guido of Guido Architects, 23419 Ford Road, Dearborn, was 
present.  Mr. Guido said the request is a good reuse of the property and would 
make a good impact on the City.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked what hours the facility would be open. 
 
Mr. Guido based the hours of operation on the existing Oak Park facility, and 
surmised the facility would be open from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. 
 
Ms. Troshynski commended the petitioner on an excellent presentation.  She 
addressed the building materials and landscaping techniques.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz said he understands that the petitioner is in compliance of the City’s 
sign ordinance, but he feels the five to six foot tall letters across the top of a building 
detracts from the building’s appearance.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked if there were future plans for the undeveloped area on the 
site plan, and for clarification on the fencing.   
 
Mr. Guido said there are no plans to develop that area, but assured members that 
the area would be well maintained.  He explained the parcel was larger than what 
was required for the operation.  Mr. Guido said the decorative rod iron fence would 
be visible to the street, and a black vinyl coated chain link fence would be used 
along the rest of the building.  
 
Mr. Vleck brought to the attention of the petitioner that the site would be a good 
potential to store outdoor commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Guido said that option has been considered.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin said the City is appreciative of the amount of trees saved on this 
development, and to bear that in mind before providing storage for commercial 
vehicles.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-118 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Self Storage Facility, located on the south side of Maple, east of Axtell 
Road, in Section 32, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 264-B) – Outdoor Storage at 
Existing Industrial Building, West side of Barrett, North of Maple (1945 Barrett), 
Section 28, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use and site plan as submitted.   
 
Scott Ringler of Giffels Webster Engineers, 2871 Bond Street, Rochester Hills, was 
present to represent the petitioner.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-119 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the Outdoor 
Storage at an Existing Industrial Building, located on the west side of Barrett, north 
of Maple, in Section 28, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the revisions made to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to wireless communication towers on school property and City 
park sites.   
 
A brief discussion followed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster cited unpublished case law that prompted the proposed ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-120 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article X (R-IA THROUGH R-1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS) pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures and antennas in 
parks and on school property subject to Special Use Approval, and Article XVIII (C-
F COMMUNITY FACILITIES), pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures 
and antennas in parks and on school property subject to Special Conditions, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Vleck supports the ordinance amendment but would prefer the fall zone to be 
five times the height of the structure.  He believes a bigger fall zone would give the 
City a stronger public stance should there be objections to a proposed structure. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the text amendment would be helpful and is responsive to many 
objections voiced by the residents.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that requests for freestanding tower structures in parks or 
on school property would be required to go through the special use approval 
process.   
 
Chair Schultz stated that City Council would have final action on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Lancaster announced a recent court decision relating to Telly’s Greenhouse.  
 
Mr. Miller said time limits would be set for several lofty agenda items in the future. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the Chair to share closing comments he made at the 
special/study meeting held prior to tonight’s meeting.  She addressed the method in 
which the special/study meeting was conducted, and would prefer that the Planning 
Consultant launch into discussion of agenda items with less lead-in time.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the enforcement of dumpsters placed throughout the City for 
the collection of clothing.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that clothing collection dumpsters are violations of the 
zoning ordinance.  She said priority of enforcement on zoning code violations have 
been addressed by the Building Department and City Council.  Ms. Lancaster said 
she would address the item further with the Director of Building and Zoning and 
forward information to the members.  
 
Mr. Vleck said it takes little effort for the City to initiate a letter to inform a specific 
organization that it is in violation of a City ordinance. 
 
Mr. Littman complimented a student in the audience for her dedication in staying 
until the end of tonight’s meeting.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Chair Schultz addressed:  1) City Council’s position on enforcement of zoning code 
violations; 2) new projection screens in Council Chambers; 3) room temperature of 
Council Chambers; and 4) time limits on agenda items.  
 
Further, Chair Schultz said in discussions with City staff, the Planning Consultant, 
Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy and City Manager Phil Nelson, he has 
addressed the intent of the Planning Commission and City staff to do everything in 
their power to move development and redevelopment processes forward.  Chair 
Schultz said the City is at a crucial point in its life cycle, and realize that 
redevelopment must happen.  The Planning Commission does not want to stand as 
a hindrance or impediment to developers who come forward and are willing to 
spend money on redevelopment and improvements to the City.  Chair Schultz said 
the Planning Commission and staff would work with everyone and every petitioner 
to address items in the most expeditious fashion as possible. 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the City has contracted with Zucker Systems to conduct 
an analysis of the City’s development approval process.  He addressed the 
members’ involvement in the process, and encouraged them to check out the firm’s 
website.   
 
Chair Schultz applauded the City Manager for his commitment in the development 
approval process analysis.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that, effective September 12, City Hall will have extended 
hours of operation on Wednesday from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.  
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:37 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\07-10-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 11, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, July 11, 2007, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2007. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of June 13, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WOODWARD COMMON LAND, LLC, 4137 
COOLIDGE, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that these two items were very similar and he would like to make 
the presentation for both at the same time.  Mr. Stimac also said that a separate motion 
would have to be made for each item, because the requests were for separate parcels 
of land. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence in a front yard.  The site plan submitted indicates a metal fence with masonry 
piers that range from 4’ to 7’ in height.  This fence is proposed to be located in the 
required front yard 34’ from the front property line along Coolidge.  Chapter 83 limits 
fences located in front yards to not more than 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the development of these four lots is somewhat unusual 
in that they will be sharing two (2) driveways. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for a clarification regarding the status of the occupancy of the 
homes in this area.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 11, 2007 

2 
 

 
ITEMS #2 & #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. David Jensen of Woodward Common Land, LLC, stated that the home at 4173 
Coolidge has a foundation, 4137 Coolidge will be finished by August 1, 2007 and 4155 
Coolidge has been occupied since February.   
 
Mr. Jensen said that Mr. and Mrs. Curis of 4155 Coolidge approached him and asked if 
he would consider putting in a gate along the front of the property.  They have lived in 
the home since February and there is a considerable amount of traffic that parks on 
their street and they are concerned as this is a private drive.  Mr. Jensen said that they 
have put in a berm and extensive landscaping to obscure the view of these homes from 
traffic traveling along Coolidge.  Mr. and Mrs. Curis are concerned about the safety of 
their children.  The petitioner does not believe that a fence that is 30” high will prevent 
unwanted people from coming onto these sites.   
 
Mr. Jensen stated that the homeowners will operate the gates with a key pad and 
visitors will use to a phone system to gain entry.  This will give Mr. and Mrs. Curis the 
security they are looking for. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that technically anyone that wanted access to this property would be 
able to walk around the gates and gain access.  Traffic on Coolidge is normal street 
traffic and Mr. Kessler does not think it is excessive.  Mr. Kessler also said that he 
thought the landscaping in place was excellent and believes they could achieve a better 
look by putting up signs indicating that this is a “Private Drive”.  Mr. Kessler believes the 
same results would be obtained without gates.  Mr. Kessler does not believe that the 
gates will prevent people from getting in that want to get in. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that he is very concerned about the gates in this area.  This driveway is 
only 15’ wide and he believes it can be very difficult to get Fire trucks in.  If an alarm 
goes off and no one is home, Police, Fire or ambulances would not have access.  
Furthermore, Mr. Nelson stated that it is very difficult to find addresses on these homes.  
Other gated communities in Troy have complete fire suppression and the Fire 
Department has access to these systems.  Mr. Nelson also said that these gates would 
set a precedent and believes it will create a safety hazard for the homeowners. 
 
Mr. Jensen stated that each home has an address on it. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that it took him twenty (20) minutes to find the property in question and 
said that the gates will create more safety hazards. 
 
Mr. Dziurman suggested that the petitioner put the gates along their own property. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they could put the gates west of the north-south driveway, which 
would result in a setback of 50’.   
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 11, 2007 

3 
 

 
ITEM #2 & #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Jensen said that if the gates were located in this area they would not be able to 
open. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested individual gates on each lot. 
 
Mr. Jensen said that traffic would still have access for traffic to come in and out.  This 
road is very well screened and people can park vehicles there and you would not be 
able to see them.  They would be allowed to put up a gate that is 30” high, but this 
would allow people to step over it and what they are asking for is a variance in the 
height.  The safety issues brought up can be dealt with.  Problems that have been 
identified can be fixed.  The gates will remain open from 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. and 
will be closed in the evenings and on the weekends. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Jensen stated that they are asking to do this on private property and the residents 
believe it is important to them. 
 
ITEM #2 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Woodward Common Land, LLC, 4137 Coolidge, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard with masonry piers that range from 
4’ to 7’ in height where Chapter 83 limits fences located in front yards to not more than 
30”. 
 

• The addition of gates would create a hazard to public safety and welfare. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner could explore other options. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 11, 2007 

4 
 

 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WOODWARD COMMON LAND, LLC, 4191 
COOLIDGE (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a 
front yard. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Woodward Common Land, LLC, 4191 Coolidge, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard with masonry piers that range from 
4’ to 7’ in height where Chapter 83 limits fences located in front yards to not more than 
30”. 
 

• The addition of gates would create a hazard to public safety and welfare. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner could explore other options. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:48 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
     



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JULY 11, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, July 11, 2007, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2007. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of June 13, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WOODWARD COMMON LAND, LLC, 4137 
COOLIDGE, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that these two items were very similar and he would like to make 
the presentation for both at the same time.  Mr. Stimac also said that a separate motion 
would have to be made for each item, because the requests were for separate parcels 
of land. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence in a front yard.  The site plan submitted indicates a metal fence with masonry 
piers that range from 4’ to 7’ in height.  This fence is proposed to be located in the 
required front yard 34’ from the front property line along Coolidge.  Chapter 83 limits 
fences located in front yards to not more than 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the development of these four lots is somewhat unusual 
in that they will be sharing two (2) driveways. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for a clarification regarding the status of the occupancy of the 
homes in this area.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JULY 11, 2007 

2 
 

 
ITEMS #2 & #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. David Jensen of Woodward Common Land, LLC, stated that the home at 4173 
Coolidge has a foundation, 4137 Coolidge will be finished by August 1, 2007 and 4155 
Coolidge has been occupied since February.   
 
Mr. Jensen said that Mr. and Mrs. Curis of 4155 Coolidge approached him and asked if 
he would consider putting in a gate along the front of the property.  They have lived in 
the home since February and there is a considerable amount of traffic that parks on 
their street and they are concerned as this is a private drive.  Mr. Jensen said that they 
have put in a berm and extensive landscaping to obscure the view of these homes from 
traffic traveling along Coolidge.  Mr. and Mrs. Curis are concerned about the safety of 
their children.  The petitioner does not believe that a fence that is 30” high will prevent 
unwanted people from coming onto these sites.   
 
Mr. Jensen stated that the homeowners will operate the gates with a key pad and 
visitors will use to a phone system to gain entry.  This will give Mr. and Mrs. Curis the 
security they are looking for. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that technically anyone that wanted access to this property would be 
able to walk around the gates and gain access.  Traffic on Coolidge is normal street 
traffic and Mr. Kessler does not think it is excessive.  Mr. Kessler also said that he 
thought the landscaping in place was excellent and believes they could achieve a better 
look by putting up signs indicating that this is a “Private Drive”.  Mr. Kessler believes the 
same results would be obtained without gates.  Mr. Kessler does not believe that the 
gates will prevent people from getting in that want to get in. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that he is very concerned about the gates in this area.  This driveway is 
only 15’ wide and he believes it can be very difficult to get Fire trucks in.  If an alarm 
goes off and no one is home, Police, Fire or ambulances would not have access.  
Furthermore, Mr. Nelson stated that it is very difficult to find addresses on these homes.  
Other gated communities in Troy have complete fire suppression and the Fire 
Department has access to these systems.  Mr. Nelson also said that these gates would 
set a precedent and believes it will create a safety hazard for the homeowners. 
 
Mr. Jensen stated that each home has an address on it. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that it took him twenty (20) minutes to find the property in question and 
said that the gates will create more safety hazards. 
 
Mr. Dziurman suggested that the petitioner put the gates along their own property. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they could put the gates west of the north-south driveway, which 
would result in a setback of 50’.   
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JULY 11, 2007 

3 
 

 
ITEM #2 & #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Jensen said that if the gates were located in this area they would not be able to 
open. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested individual gates on each lot. 
 
Mr. Jensen said that traffic would still have access for traffic to come in and out.  This 
road is very well screened and people can park vehicles there and you would not be 
able to see them.  They would be allowed to put up a gate that is 30” high, but this 
would allow people to step over it and what they are asking for is a variance in the 
height.  The safety issues brought up can be dealt with.  Problems that have been 
identified can be fixed.  The gates will remain open from 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. and 
will be closed in the evenings and on the weekends. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Jensen stated that they are asking to do this on private property and the residents 
believe it is important to them. 
 
ITEM #2 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Woodward Common Land, LLC, 4137 Coolidge, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard with masonry piers that range from 
4’ to 7’ in height where Chapter 83 limits fences located in front yards to not more than 
30”. 
 

• The addition of gates would create a hazard to public safety and welfare. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner could explore other options. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JULY 11, 2007 

4 
 

 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WOODWARD COMMON LAND, LLC, 4191 
COOLIDGE (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a 
front yard. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Woodward Common Land, LLC, 4191 Coolidge, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence in a front yard with masonry piers that range from 
4’ to 7’ in height where Chapter 83 limits fences located in front yards to not more than 
30”. 
 

• The addition of gates would create a hazard to public safety and welfare. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner could explore other options. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:48 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
     



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, July 17, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik (Arrived at 7:34 P.M.) 
    Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 

Marcia Gies 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 

 
ABSENT:   Matthew Kovacs 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
  Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
  Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 19, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Clark, Courtney, Maxwell, Wright,  
Absent: 2 – Bartnik, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MNAD PROPERTY, LLC, 3236 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for renewal of relief of a six-foot high screening wall required by Section 
39.10.01 along the south property line where the property abuts residentially zoned 
land. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of a six-foot high 
screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south property line where the 
property abuts residentially zoned land.  The variance was originally granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 it was reported to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals that the variance was no longer necessary.  A review of the records 
indicates that was not the case.  The petitioner is asking that the original variance be 
renewed on the property.       
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of June 19, 2007 and was 
postponed to allow Board members to take another look at the property to make a 
determination of what will be required. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maged Michail, the owner of the property was present and stated that this variance 
has been granted since 1968 without an issue.  Mr. Michail does not believe it is fair to 
change this request since it is under private ownership.  The neighbor is not 
complaining about noise or the upkeep of the property, she is upset about people 
coming onto her property.  Mr. Michail said extra landscaping or a wooden fence would 
solve this problem.   
 
Mr. Michail said that he has met with the Planning Commission with his plans for this 
property and feels the requirement to put up a screen wall would be a punishment. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that Mr. Michail is required by the Ordinance to put up a screen 
wall, but the Board would like to see an alternative.  The Board can give a one, two or 
three year variance on relief of the required screen wall. 
 
Mr. Michail said that although the neighbor had said the tree was gone, they have only 
trimmed the lowest branches.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like to see extra screening or a cyclone or wood 
fence.  Mr. Courtney believes this property needs to be screened to address the 
concerns of the neighbor. 
 
Mr. Maxwell pointed out that landscaping would have to be monitored. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he would prefer to see a wooden fence. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that the neighbor that appeared at the meeting in June definitely 
indicated that that she wanted a wall to provide the necessary screening. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he believes the neighbor wanted a wall.  Mr. Bartnik is concerned 
because of the proximity of residences and businesses and feels that they are in very 
close proximity and the business is closing in on the residential area.  Mr. Bartnik does 
not believe a cyclone fence would be the answer and would vote against this variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant MNAD Property, LLC, 3236 Rochester Road, a one-year variance for 
relief of the six-foot high screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south 
property line where the property abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• 6’ high wood screening fence would be installed. 
• One-year time frame will allow the Board to determine the upkeep of the 

property. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
Nays:  1 – Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – APPROVAL REQUEST.  JASON WENZEL, 213 FABIUS, for approval 
under Section 43.74.01 to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Ford utility van described in the application does not meet the exceptions 
found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if Mr. Wenzel had looked into storing this vehicle in another location 
and Mr. Wenzel stated that he hadn’t due to the cost involved. 
 
Mr. Wenzel was present and stated that he has owned the property for three years.  He 
has completely re-done the house, which includes new windows and landscaping.  He 
is not trying to bring property values down but is in fact trying to increase the value of 
the property.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the Board has to go by certain criteria to determine if approval can 
be granted to store this vehicle on residential property. 
 
Mr. Wenzel stated that he had spoken to six (6) of his neighbors and they have all told 
him that they approve of him storing this vehicle outside. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that one of the objections indicated that there are a lot of construction 
materials stored outside. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he plans to put an addition on the home to increase the value of 
the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if this material was to be used for this addition. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he plans to remove the one-car garage and make it a two-car 
garage and add a second story to the home. He has been buying material until he gets 
to the point where he is ready to do this. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked which of the criteria Mr. Wenzel feels apply to his situation. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he did not know what the criteria were. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell read the criteria to Mr. Wenzel from the application. 
 
Mr. Wenzel stated that in his opinion a detached garage would be an eyesore to the 
area as the neighbors would rather look at landscaping than an accessory building.  Mr. 
Wenzel said that a detached garage would bring the value of the property down. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Wenzel had any thoughts to making the proposed garage 
large enough to accommodate this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that it would not work as the garage would have to be deeper on one 
side and would lower property value.  Mr. Wenzel also said that he has a height 
requirement to consider.  He wants to put more square footage on the house. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Betty Dolezel, 242 Fabius was present and stated that she lives across the street 
from Mr. Wenzel.  She sees the truck from her window and does not have any objection 
to the parking of this vehicle outside.  Ms. Dolezel said that the vehicle is not that large 
and it does not bother her at all. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that when he had driven by this property the vehicle was parked next 
to the garage and said that it appears there is plenty of room to add an additional 
driveway and a detached garage to house this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he had expanded the driveway and went from gravel to cement.  
This is the area he plans to put up the addition.  Mr. Wenzel also stated that he believes 
a building at the back of the property would detract from the site. 
 
Mr. Wright said that it appears he has room to go on either side of the house to a 
detached garage. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said he has a deck on the back of the house and does not believe there is 
enough room to maneuver a vehicle back there.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he believes Mr. Wenzel could look at adding to the garage. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said it will not work, and he would have to put a 10’ door on one side and if 
he put up a detached building, it would be an eyesore because of the 10’ door. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he does not like the way the Ordinance is written and believes 
that each individual should look for alternative places for these vehicles.   Mr. Maxwell 
further stated that it is very difficult for this Board to make a decision based on the 
criteria listed.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that he hopes the Planning Commission will 
come up with stricter guidelines regarding commercial vehicles. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why the petitioner needed a 10’ high garage door. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that this is an enclosed truck and he cannot take it through a drive-thru 
that has a height of 9’ and so he assumes that he would need a higher door. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how high the vehicle was and Mr. Wenzel stated that he did not know.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if he knew how wide the vehicle was and Mr. Wenzel stated that it is a 
regular dual’e, which means it has two wheels on each side of the back. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion the petitioner has not met any of the requirements 
listed in the application and believes that it will negatively impact the surrounding 
properties. 
 
MOVED, to grant Jason Wenzel, 213 Fabius, approval under Section 43.74.01 to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a period of one-year. 
 

• One-year time limit will allow petitioner to explore other alternative locations to 
store this vehicle. 

• Petitioner has met Standard B and C of Section 43.74.01. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell strongly urged the petitioner to look into alternatives to store this vehicle 
and to be prepared to come back in one-year’s time to explain to the Board why an 
alternative location would not be an option.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he believes it is 
very difficult for this Board to make a sound decision based on the criteria provided. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAT PETITTO, REAL ESTATE CONSULTANT 
FOR THE CITY OF TROY, for the purchase of a portion of the property at 6480 John R. 
that will result in a lot area of 8,100 square feet where Section 30.10.05 requires 8,500 
square feet minimum lot size in the R-1D Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to purchase 
a portion of the property at 6480 John R.  The property in question is located in the R-
1D (One-Family Residential) Zoning District.  Section 30.10.05 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a minimum lot size for a single-family dwelling in the R-1D Zoning  
District of 8,500 square feet.  The portion of the parcel remaining after the acquisition of 
the John R. Road right of way will be only 8,100 square feet in area. 
 
The Ordinance grandfathers the setback of the structure as it is right now, however, it 
does not grandfather the area of the site and this is reason it needs to meet the 
requirement of 8,500 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that the property to the south wraps behind this parcel.  
The parcel to the south has been split a number of times and the number of allowable 
splits has been maxed out.  City Staff has arranged a “No Build” agreement so that the 
property behind 6480 John R. cannot be developed any further.  Accessory buildings, 
fences or any other type of structure cannot be constructed in this area.  Furthermore, 
any additional landscaping would also require approval.   This agreement does not 
physically expand the size of the property, although it will give the appearance of a 
larger lot. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how far this existing home would be from the right of way line once 
John R. is expanded. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it will be approximately 37’ from the road. 
 
Ms. Petitto was present and stated that she had nothing further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Pat Petitto, Real Estate Consultant for the City of Troy, approval for 
the purchase of a portion of the property at 6480 John R. that will result in a lot area of 
8,100 square feet where Section 30.10.05 requires 8,500 square feet minimum lot size 
in the R-1D Zoning District. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ND INDUSTRIES, INC. 1893 BARRETT, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the existing industrial building that will 
result in 60 parking spaces where Section 40.21.80 of the Ordinance requires 75 
parking spaces; and, a 6’-2” side yard setback where Section 30.20.09 requires a 
minimum 10’ side yard setback in the M-1 Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to the existing building.  The proposed addition results in a total building 
area on the site of 33,730 square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 43 
parking spaces will be developed on the site and another 17 spaces will be “land 
banked” at the west end of the property resulting in a total number of parking spaces 
available of 60.  Section 40.21.80 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that a 
minimum of 75 parking spaces be provided for an industrial building of this size. 
 
The existing front building has a 6’-2” side yard setback to the north property line.  
Section 30.20.09 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District.  The proposed addition will extend 
this non-conforming setback. 
 
A discussion began regarding the number of parking spaces shown on the plan as well 
as the number of parking spaces the petitioner is planning to “land bank”.  
 
Mr. Thomas Roth of Roth and Associates and Mr. Joe Gutowski, General Manager of N 
D Industries, were present.  Mr. Roth explained that in 2004, N D Industries had met 
with both the Building Department Staff as well as the Fire Department to discuss the 
requirements to bring this building up to code. Two wood storage buildings were 
constructed without permits. Originally, they planned to alter this building in three 
phases.  The first phase was to add a fire protection system, fire pump, generators, 
make up air systems and exhaust systems to handle the chemicals used in this building.  
This phase has been completed. 
 
Their second phase was to go in and change all of the electrical systems where 
hazardous materials were being used.  This phase was scheduled to begin in 2007.   
 
The third phase, in 2008, was to remove the back buildings 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Management decided to do all of this work in one phase.  Essentially they came up with 
a plan that will eliminate the wooden storage building, a loading dock and a truck well.   
 
They lost about 6,000 square feet of storage space that held highly flammable 
materials.   
 
The proposed addition would have a containment area, a building within a building that 
would store the hazardous materials necessary to this building.   The entire building is 
sprinklered, and this containment room is about 2,000 square feet.  There is also a 
containment area, about 18” deep, to hold the sprinklered water in case of 
contamination. 
 
This addition caused the loss of some available parking needed due to trucks coming in 
and out of the property. 
 
There are 43 parking spaces available to handle their largest shift, which consists of 39 
employees. 
 
Two additions have been put on this building.  Mr. Roth said that they have researched 
property records, but have been unable to determine how this building was constructed 
with a 6’-2” side yard setback.  The building was originally constructed in 1957. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant N D Industries, Inc., 1893 Barrett, for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition on the existing industrial building that will result in 60 parking 
spaces where Section 40.21.80 of the Ordinance requires 75 parking spaces; and, a 6’-
2” side yard setback where Section 30.20.09 requires a minimum 10’ side yard setback 
in the M-1 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Variance does not prohibit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARCY DEGIULIN-GALCA, 125 E. MAPLE 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new office building 
that will result in a 22’ front yard setback and 10’ side yard setback to the west property 
line where Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front 
yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard setback for buildings in the O-1 District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new office building.  This property is located in the O-1 (Office Building) Zoning 
District.  Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front 
yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard setback for buildings in the O-1 District.  The 
site plan submitted indicates a 22’ front yard setback and a 10’ side yard setback to the 
west property line. 
 
Ms. Degiulin-Galca was present and stated that they have been in this building for 
seventeen (17) years and recently they had a fire.  They are proposing to construct a 
new 1800 square foot building.  The previous building was 2700 square feet. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the neighbors were commercial or residential.  Ms. Degiulin-Galca 
said that they were commercial. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this area of Maple with the exception of a couple of buildings, 
are a number of houses that have been converted to commercial uses.  The property to 
the north is zoned residential and the petitioner has provided a 6’ high screen wall 
where this property abuts the residential property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked for clarification of the setback requests. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the requested 10’ side yard setback is to the west property 
line and the residential property is to the north of this parcel.  This new building will have 
a 48’ setback to the residential property line and the screen wall that is required is 
shown on the construction plans. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

10 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Marcy Degiulin-Galca, 125 E. Maple, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new office building that will result in a 22’ front yard setback and a 10” side 
yard setback to the west property line where Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard 
setback for buildings in the O-1 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PATRICK DYKE, REPRESENTING AZHAR ALI, 
2062 CHARNWOOD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence with a 29’-9” building height where Section 30.10.01 (u) 
limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning District to 27’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence.  The plans submitted indicate a 29’-9” building height for 
the proposed residence when measured in accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 
30.10.01 (u) limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning 
District with property installed attic draft stopping to not more than 27’. 
 
Patrick Dyke, of Patrick Dyke Collaborative, LLC was present.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Dyke was aware that the means were available to make this 
structure comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the entire residence would have to have a fire suppression system 
or they would have to physically reduce the structure.  A very small portion of this roof 
would be 29’-9”, the largest portion of the roof will be 29’-3”.  They could sprinkle the 
entire residence; however, it is a major undertaking.  The house is designed as low to 
the ground as possible.  There is a 10’ first floor ceiling and an 8’ second floor ceiling.  
They cut into the attic to bring the roof line down.  The house is only 30’ deep at the 
mid- point. They have designed the eave of the roof as close to the second floor 
windows as possible.  According to the Ordinance they could design a home that is 
15,000 square feet, but are only going to build a house that is about one-half of that 
size.  About 50% of the roof of this house is only one-story.  Mr. Dyke also said that it is 
a major undertaking to put a fire suppression system in an entire home and is very 
expensive. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

11 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Dyke had spoken to the Fire Department regarding fire 
suppression on this home. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that they had and they have tried to lower the height of the home as 
much as possible.  One of the suggestions made by the Fire Department would be to 
draft stop the attic into smaller portions.  Fire suppression systems usually slow down a 
fire, not necessarily put a fire out.  They have draft stopped the attic in three sections. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that when considering a variance, the Board has to consider the 
character and nature of the surrounding area.  This home “as is” is much bigger and 
higher than anything in this area. 
 
Mr. Dyke pointed out that if they add a fire suppression system, the height of this home 
could be 32’ height. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this home is going to be massive compared to other 
homes in the area.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he understands how large a home can 
be constructed on this property, as it is a very large parcel.  
 
Mr. Dyke stated that he has never seen a 32’ height standard in any other community.  
As markets get stronger, this home will add to the value of the homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large this home would be and Mr. Dyke stated that the first floor 
is about 7,000 square feet and the basement is approximately 4,200 square feet. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the Board has to look at how this home would fit into the area. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the middle of the house is set quite a way back from the front 
property line, so that it would be less obtrusive to the other homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked why it was necessary that this home have a 29’ height. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that in order to lower the roof, they would have to lower the ceilings on 
the first floor and take something from the ceiling height on the second floor.  As a 
designer different design elements come into play and he is trying to make this home as 
attractive as possible.  The roof line should be symmetrical and the pitches on the roof 
equal, especially as this is a hip roof. 
 
 Mr. Dyke went on to say that he was at this meeting for technical support and 
introduced the owner of the property, Dr. M.A. Ali to answer any further questions. 
 
Dr. Ali stated that his first exposure to Troy was in 1992, living at Somerset Apartments.  
Since that time he had considered himself a citizen of Troy.  Troy has an excellent 
school system.    Dr. Ali said that it is very difficult to say exactly why he wanted to live  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

12 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
in Troy, except that in his opinion it was similar to “love at first sight”.  Dr. Ali lived in 
Toronto for a period of time, but always wanted to come back to Troy.  Dr. Ali said that 
he would like to be able to give back to the community.  Dr. Ali plans to replace all the 
trees that have been removed and feels this will be a beautiful addition to the area. 
 
Dr. Ali explained that this home is going to be environmentally friendly.  The basement 
will be constructed with material that is 2 ½ times stronger than anything else that is on  
the market and being used at the present time.  They plan to use much more insulation 
and therefore the amount of heating and cooling required would be greatly reduced.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that it is a beautiful plan.  Mr. Maxwell said that he appreciates what 
he is trying to do, but does have concerns about the neighborhood as a whole. 
 
Dr. Ali said that there was another home in the area that was higher that this proposed 
home. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner why he came before the Board.  If the petitioner 
added a Fire Suppression system a variance would not be required and the house could 
be built with a height of 32’. 
 
Dr. Ali stated that a fire suppression system is a major undertaking and very expensive.  
 
Mr. Dyke stated that a fire suppression system would run between $40,000 and 
$45,000.  This cost is difficult to justify. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Ivan Johnson, 6100 Windrush, was present.  Mr. Johnson said that Charnwood was 
built in the 1950’s and was considered way out in the country.  There were quite a few 
restrictions on the property that limited them to one-story homes and many did not have 
basements.  Times have changed and there is quite a bit of new construction going on 
in this area.  Mr. Johnson said that he would be thrilled to see this home go in.  If the 
house was sprinklered it would be bigger and higher and in his opinion more obtrusive 
to the homes in the area.  Mr. Johnson does support this request. 
 
Ms. Jacqueline Stephan, 2160 Charnwood was present.  Ms. Stephan said that she has 
lived in this area for approximately 1 ½ years.  In the time she has been there she has 
been cleaning up the property and met just about all of the neighbors.  Times have 
changed, but Ms. Stephan does not believe this home is in the spirit of the 
neighborhood.  Most of the people in the area are quiet, retired homeowners and most 
of the children are grown and gone.  The homes being constructed on Dalesford are 
much larger and she believes this is the way the trend is going.  Ms. Stephan does not 
see a lot of people coming into this area to build 7,000 square foot houses.  Ms. 
Stephan also said that approximately 70% to 75% of the people in this area are retired  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

13 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
and she thinks that the petitioner should look at the surrounding homes and construct 
his home to fit in with the others in the area.  Ms. Stephan stated that her home is 2,300 
square feet and she does not see doubling the size of it just to have an investment in 
the neighborhood.  Ms. Stephan said that she bought the property for the land. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the home looks very large but it does not take up the entire lot.  
There will be a lot of property still around this home and would not be considered a “big 
foot” home as it does not take up the entire lot. 
 
Ms. Stephan stated that there will be a lot of driveway and cement near her property as 
there is a four car driveway. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that Mr. Johnson has been there a very long time and he is in favor of 
this request.  
 
Ms. Stephan said that she is not saying that she is not in favor, she just wants to caution 
the Board to be aware of what kind of neighborhood this is.  The neighbor behind this 
parcel is very upset about this construction and she did not know why he was not there 
to voice his disapproval. 
 
No one else wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed.     
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he did not see any hardship associated with the land that would 
justify a variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney agreed with Mr. Wright and yet would like to see the home constructed.  
The cost of the sprinkler system is not a hardship. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Board had to find a practical difficulty that would justify 
granting a variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that although this is a beautiful home it would have a negative impact 
on surrounding property.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he believes that this home could be 
constructed and comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the practical difficulty is that you have an Ordinance written that is 
so low that it is not conducive to designing any type of two story home with a decent 
roof pitch on it.  The physical constraint is the height dictated by the Ordinance.  This is 
a 7,000 square foot home but is only 30’ deep.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that typical homes in Troy are about 2300 square feet and don’t have 
10 foot ceilings. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

14 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that most new homes are constructed with 9’ high ceilings.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this is a very large home.   
 
Mr. Dyke stated that they have draft stopped this home in three sections.  They have 
attempted to get the house to look proportionate.  They are trying to blend this home 
with the area.  This is not an investment home and Dr. Ali and his family plan to stay in 
this home for at least fifteen years.  This is the City they want to live in and are not 
worried about how many children are in the area.  This is not a financial investment. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the Ordinance allows an exception and he does not believe there is 
a practical difficulty other than the cost involved.  The petitioner has demonstrated that 
he has done a lot already, and he is having a problem understanding why this is such a 
problem. 
 
Mr. Courtney took an informal poll of the Board and believes it may be best to postpone 
this request until we have a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that right now he would vote against this request. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he would vote against this request because he does not see a 
practical difficulty and there is an alternative solution available. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the house would be good for the City and these lots are large 
enough to support a home of this size, but he did not see a practical hardship that would 
justify a variance.   
 
Mr. Clark stated that he was having a hard time finding the practical difficulty involved 
with this request.  Mr. Clark said that he would recommend that the petitioners come up 
with a better explanation as to why the Ordinance cannot be met.  This is a great City. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Patrick Dyke, representing Dr. Azhar Ali, 2062 
Charnwood (proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new single-
family residence with a 29’-9” building height where Section 30.10.01 (u) limits the 
building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning District to 27’ until the 
meeting of August 21, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide more information on the 
practical difficulty involved with this request. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

15 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL AUGUST 21, 2007 CARRIED 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:26 P.M. 
 
 
 
             
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
             
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A special meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Tuesday, July 
24, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Henry Allemon called the meeting to order at 
7:29 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-014  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Payne at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of July 24, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 

licensed business located at 1237 North Coolidge, Troy, Michigan 48084, 
Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req #421656} 

 
2. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 

licensed business located at 2105 W. South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan 
48098, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req # 421608} 
 

3. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 
licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083, Oakland 
County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req # 421588} 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Mr. Chris Rodgers, Real 
Estate Manager for the Great Lakes Division of The Kroger Company.   
 
Also present at the meeting was Ms. Ann Comiskey, Executive Director of the Troy 
Community Coalition. 
 
Sgt. Cantlon presented the Committee members with information on the Kroger 
Company’s liquor violation history in Troy, as well as Oakland and Macomb 
Counties.   
 
Mr. Rodgers explained that The Kroger Company is open for business in the three 
former Farmer Jack locations in the City of Troy.  He stated that the stores are 
currently organized and stocked to resemble the former Farmer Jack, but each 
location would be remodeled in the future.  He thanked the Committee for 
convening for this Special Meeting to consider the license transfers.   
 
Concerns were presented by Allemon and Ms. Comiskey as to the location of the 
beer and wine in the John R/Big Beaver store.  They felt that those items should 
be in an aisle further away from the entrance/exit door and within view of the 
Service Desk personnel.  The Committee asked further questions and discussed 
this issue. 
 
The Committee discussed a suggestion that their recommendation for approval of 
the license transfer contain restrictions that The Kroger Company relocate the 
beer and wine shelves and coolers when the stores were remodeled.     
 
There was also discussion to approve the license transfer without restrictions. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
Item No. 1  
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-015 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 1237 North Coolidge, Troy, Michigan 
48084, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc. 
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
 
Item No. 2 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-016 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 2105 W. South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan 
48098, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.   
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
 
Item No. 3 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-017 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 4 of 4 

RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083, 
Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.   
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Tuesday, July 31, 2007, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. In the absence of Chairman Bliss, Vice-Chairman 
Bloom called the Meeting to order at 3:36 PM. 

 
ROLL CALL:   
 PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Jerry E. Bloom, David Eisenbacher, Shirley 

Kanoza, Mark Solomon, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Daniel Bliss,  

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Bluhm, City Clerk Bartholomew and Deputy 
City Clerk Pallotta 

 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBER: Daniel Bliss 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-006 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Dan Bliss be EXCUSED from the meeting of July 31, 2007.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBERS: Daniel Bliss and Mark Solomon 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-007 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Dan Bliss and Mark Solomon be EXCUSED from the meeting of June 
15, 2007.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Friday, June 15, 2007 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-008 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Friday, June 15, 2007 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-009 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS an 
amendment to Section 6.2(g) of the City Charter proposed as follows: 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in elective 
office, be amended to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at 
the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their own without 
resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current Section 6.2(g) in 
its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not 
expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective 
office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from their current Council 
position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
It was the consensus of the committee to revise the motion to allow for the resignation of a 
council member to occur 21 days prior to the date of filing. This revision was requested to 
allow ample time for interested candidate to file for the vacant position prior to the filing 
deadline. It was noted that the Clerk’s office publishes a notice of the filing deadline, 
including the number of potential positions, 15 days prior to the filing deadline. This 
modification would allow for the vacant position to be included in the notice publication. 
 
AMENDMENT TO PROPOSED MOTION 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-009 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Kanoza 

-2- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 
 
RESOLVED, That the motion be AMENDED BY SUBSTITUTION the following ballot 
language for the proposed ballot language in its entirety: 
 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, 
be amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the 
next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without 
resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its 
entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring 
at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, 
except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 
21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

VOTE ON AMENDED MAIN MOTION: 
 
SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-010 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS an 
amendment to Section 6.2(g) of the City Charter proposed as follows: 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, 
be amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the 
next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without 

-3- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft July 31, 2007 
 

resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its 
entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring 
at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, 
except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 
21 days before filing for municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-07-011 
Moved by Barno 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Tuesday, July 31, 2007 be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Vice-Chair Bloom ADJOURNED the meeting at 4:18 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jerry E. Bloom, Vice-Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-4- 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a





































campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other 
Organizations:  
J-4 No Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from 

Other Organizations  

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



1 8/2/2007agenda

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007

S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
August 1

8:30am Building Code Board 
of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm City Council-Special 
Meeting-Chamber of 

2 3 4

5

6
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

7
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

8
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

14
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission-Special 
(Conference Room C)

22
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

23 24 25

26

27 28
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

29 30 31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



2 8/2/2007agenda

S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007September 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
September 1

2

3
City Hall Closed

4
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

5
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Animal Control 
Appeal Board (Lower 

6
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

7 8

9

10
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

12
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

13
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

14 15

16

17
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

18
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

19
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

20
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

21 22

23

24 25
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

26
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

27 28 29

30



3 8/2/2007agenda

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007

S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

November 2007October 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
October 1

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

2
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

3
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference 
Room)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

4
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

5 6

7

8
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

9
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

11
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

12 13

14

15
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

16
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

17
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

18
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

19 20

21

22 23
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource R

24
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

25 26 27

28

29
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

30 31



campbellld
Text Box
J-06





campbellld
Text Box
J-07



























 

 
 
July 30, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Lieutenant Gerard Scherlinck, Community Service Section   
 
SUBJECT:   Limited Brands Law Enforcement Loss Prevention Grant 
 
Background: 
 
 Community Services Section Officer Andy Breidenich is assigned to act as liaison between the 

retail community and the police department. 
 These liaison efforts have allowed the department to: 
 Establish partnerships with private sector loss prevention personnel    
 Provide training in the prevention, detection, and apprehension of retail related criminals 
 Share intelligence information on suspects victimizing retail establishments to increase the 

likelihood of detection and apprehension  
 Maintain strong communication links with this important sector of our community. 

 Officer Breidenich has established a very effective working relationship with loss prevention 
representatives from the Limited Brands stores, which has retail outlets at both major malls 
located in the city. 

 This relationship generated a training seminar on retail crime co-hosted by the Troy Police 
Department and Limited Brands loss prevention management earlier this year. 

 In recognition of this beneficial on-going partnership, Limited Brands Regional Loss Prevention 
Manager John Zeisloft contacted Officer Breidenich and suggested the Troy Police Department 
apply for a Limited Brands law enforcement assistance grant.    

 Officer Breidenich submitted for the grant specifying that it would utilized to purchase equipment 
that would enhance the department’s ability to investigate and prosecute those involved in retail 
related criminal activity.  

 Limited Brands awarded the grant, totaling $1,000, to the department on June 27, 2007. 
 The grant will be utilized to purchase a video/still photo camera system for use in combating retail 

fraud crimes through the videotaping of suspects, crime scenes and evidence.  The cameras can 
also be used to assist in other investigations. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 N/A 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



Financial Considerations: 
 
 Through this alternative funding resource from the private sector the department was able to 

obtain state of the art video technology to enhance operations at no cost to the City of Troy. 
  
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City of Troy Goal #1 - Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 
 City of Troy Goal #2 - Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government. 
 City of Troy Goal #3 - Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: Lieutenant Gerard Scherlinck 



campbellld
Text Box
J-09



 

 
 
July 31, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
     
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Schroeder Park 
 
Background:   
 
 Recently residents approached the Parks and Recreation department with an interest in making 

improvements to Schroeder Park.  Subsequently, a petition was submitted requesting these same 
improvements.  Many years ago, residents urged the City to take no action in this park regarding 
maintenance/improvements.  Since that time, there has been little maintenance or improvements 
to the park.  A letter is being sent to residents in the Schroeder Park area seeking their input to 
these proposed improvements.  Although there is no intention of making this an active use 
recreation park, the maintenance requested would result in changes to the appearance of the 
park.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in the 2007-08 Park Maintenance operating budget. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The Parks and Recreation department maintains city parks, but little has been done to Schroeder 

Park for many years.   
 
Options: 
 
 After review and considering input from residents, the result may be changes to the service levels 

of this park. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-10



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 6, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested   
 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: August 6, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidew
	E-6 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCWA
	E-7 Service Agreement for Use of Vehicle – City of Clawson

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Histor
	F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 18, 2007
	F-3 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowi
	F-4 Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance Subdivis
	F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to
	F-6 Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance
	F-7 Bid Waiver – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services
	F-8 Kroger SDM License Applications

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address)  - 

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – March 21, 2007
	Traffic Committee/Final – April 18, 2007
	Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 15, 2007
	Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – June 26, 2007
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – July 10, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 10, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 10, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – July 10, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 11, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 11, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 17, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2007
	Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 31, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 27t

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation from Lynn Cooper Regarding the Senior
	Letter of Thanks to City Manager Phil Nelson from J. Michael
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Scott Horne Comme
	Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from John Reynolds, Delph

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Standard & Poor’s Rating of Troy
	J-7  Rehman Robson’s Engagement Letter for the City of Troy 
	J-8  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding the Lim
	J-9  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regard
	J-10  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



